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About Kantone
(stock code: 1059)

Kantone Holdings Limited (“Kantone” or the “Company”)
(www.kantone.com) together with its subsidiaries (the
“Group”) is a leading provider of IT driven communications
systems with a presence in over 50 markets. It has a
proven track record of high reliability and high integrity
products and systems established by its key subsidiary in
Europe with over 75 years of extensive experience.

Throughout the years, Kantone builds on its long-time
global client relationship to expand its business into a wide
range of sectors for the consumer market, which cover
both IT and culture-related technologies and investments.
Currently the Group’s focus is to take advantage of China’s
national policy to foster its culture industry and the rising
interest in collectibles around the world to develop a range
of related internet-based solutions and services.

Kantone is listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Exchange”) and is a subsidiary
of Champion Technology Holdings Limited, a global
technology group also listed on the Main Board of the
Exchange.
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
MHRE
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Results (for the year ended 30 June) E&(BEAA=1THILEE)

— Turnover —mEE 2,544,174 2,720,286 1,953,394 1,429,281 1,341,006
— Adjusted profit* — % () > 58,263 273,234 235,793 184,353 150,040
— Adjusted EBITDA* —KHAFE BB HER 539,747 829,722 763,534 614,273 598,043
B B (AR
— EBITDA — K AFE BB HER 492,152 561,248 605,878 510,099 532,323
B2 AR

— Attributable profit — (R H) 8,927 2,148 7217 80,474 84,025
- Dividends e = 15,133 22,537 30,006 25,593
— Earnings per share (in HK cents) —BIRERCEL) 1.03 0.28¢ 1.03 1.07 1.44
Financial Position (as at 30 June) BRI (RABE=1H)
— Cash and cash equivalents* -BepBeEH 196,407 66,648 84,193 116,233 248552
— Total assets ~EBEHE 3,692,025 3,443,636 3,435,694 3,377,650 3,334,519
- Equity —HEm 3,438,988 3,195,547 3,217,105 3,149,338 3,156,748
Financial Ratios (as at 30 June) BB (RAA=1H)
— Current assets/Current liabilities - RBEE/RBaE 15.01 20.83 16.18 9.79 6.52
— Assets/Equity —BE/ 5 1.07 1.08 1.07 1.07 1.06
~ Sales/Assets —BREEE 0.69 0.79 0.57 0.42 0.40
— Gearing ratio ~BXiEmE 0.004 0.010 0.008 0.009 0.011

* Excluding impairment * REt NRE

: Adjusted pursuant to the share consolidation in December 2014 1 BR-E-ME+Z ARMAGTIEL 2 BE

+ Excluding overdrafts * TREES

Earnings Profile (1996-2015) B R $%£(1996-2015)
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT

Dear Shareholders,

In the financial year ended 30 June 2015, the overall business environment remained challenging,
highlighted by concerns in the first half of 2015 over the Greek sovereign debt crisis, weak trade flows
in the emerging markets, continuing strength of the U.S. Dollar, and above all, Mainland China’s volatile
capital markets and the acceleration of its economic slowdown. In the markets we operated, tight controls
continued to be exercised in both public and private sector spending, thereby putting pressure on the
demand for our products and services. In response to less than favourable market conditions, and to
remain competitive, we had to engage in sale of lower margin products to maintain momentum.

FINANCIAL RESULTS

For the year ended 30 June 2015, the Group’s financial performance is summarised below:

Turnover was HK$2,544 million (2014: HK$2,720 million)

Profit for the year was HK$10.7 million (2014: HK$4.8 million)

Impairment charge was HK$48 million (2014: HK$268 million)

Adjusted EBITDA (excluding impairment) was HK$540 million (2014: HK$830 million)
Profit attributable to owners of the Company was HK$8.9 million (2014: HK$2.1 million)
Earnings per share was HK1.03 cents (2014: HK0.28 cents)

The Group’s full-year results were affected by a combination of factors, which included the weak recovery
of the markets where we operated; currency exchange losses in particular due to the weak Euro; and
suspension of online e-lottery business in Mainland China due to the introduction of new measures by
the regulatory authorities and the related impairment loss recognised for goodwill. Impairment charge for
development costs for systems and networks were however smaller than those of last year.

We maintain a positive financial position with net cash, adhere to a prudent financial management policy,
and do not enter into speculative derivatives or structured product transactions.

FINAL DIVIDEND

As a precaution against further economic and financial turbulence, and to strengthen our liquidity position
ahead of continuing market uncertainties, the board of directors does not recommend the payment of any
final dividend for the year ended 30 June 2015 (2014 nil).
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OUTLOOK

According to the latest economic indicators, the U.S. economy is forecast to grow mildly in the coming
year, but will continue to show uncertainties due to inflationary pressures and expectation of interest rate
hikes. The strengthening U.S. Dollar will continue to plague the economies of the emerging markets and
resource-exporting countries, and various factors threaten the economic recoveries in Europe. Above all,
the surprise devaluation of the Renminbi in August 2015 sparked fears that Mainland China may face a
prolonged slowdown, thus cooling investment sentiment further.

In light of continuing global challenges and the unclear prospects of Mainland China’s economy, we are
cautious in our business approach in the coming year. We will deploy resources to build on our competitive
strengths, and continue a prudent approach in investing in complementary businesses that have growth
prospects. We will also embark on a streamlining of operations and realignment of business activities to
improve our overall return.

Investment in innovative solutions holds the key to maintaining the Group’s momentum amid volatile
market conditions. In particular, the Group will pursue sectors which are supported by government policies,
including healthcare, innovation and technology, cultural and creative industries, energy conservation and
green technologies, smart living, and information-based services for the community and consumers. As and
when market conditions improve, the Group will endeavour to shift to higher margin services and market
segments.

We are cautious about the prospects of major projects in view of the uncertain economic environment,
in particular the Group’s In-Car Telematics Solution project which global business plan has already been
adversely affected. During this difficult period, the Group will place strong focus on managing risks and
finances, and will take appropriate actions to reduce exposure to projects with uncertain prospects.

APPRECIATION

I would like to take this opportunity to express my gratitude to our staff for their relentless hard work and my
fellow directors and management team for their commitment and dedication during the year. | also thank
our customers, suppliers, shareholders and business partners for their continued support.

Professor Paul KAN Man Lok
Chairman

18 September 2015
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FINANCIAL RESULTS

The Group’s results for the year under review (the “Year”)
were affected by a combination of factors, which included
the weak recovery of the markets where we operated;
currency exchange losses in particular due to the weak
Euro; suspension of online e-lottery business in Mainland
China due to the introduction of new measures by the
regulatory authorities; and the unexpected delay in the
launch of new projects.

For the Year, the Group’s turnover reduced by about 6
percent to HK$2,544 million from HK$2,720 million in the
previous year. Profit for the Year rose to HK$10.7 million
as compared to HK$4.8 million in the previous year. Profit
attributable to owners of the Company was HK$8.9 million
as compared to HK$2.1 million in the previous year, and
earnings per share was HK1.03 cents (2014: HK0.28
cents).

The reduced turnover for the Year was mainly attributable
to systems sales and licensing of HK$1,088 million as
compared with HK$1,561 million in the previous year.
However this was partially compensated by increased
sales of cultural products to HK$1,425 million, compared
with HK$1,132 million in the previous year. EBITDA was
HK$492 million, compared with HK$561 million for the
previous year.

Taking account of economic indicators the demand for the
Group’s products and services are expected to be under
continuing pressure. After careful review of the business
plans for a number of technology projects, the board of
directors deems it appropriate to reconsider the future
cashflows from such projects. In line with prudent financial
management, the Group had recognised impairment
losses of HK$11 million (2014: HK$142 million) for
development costs for systems and networks and HK$37
million (2014 nil) for goodwill arising from the suspension
of online e-lottery business in Mainland China. No
impairment was considered necessary for deposits and
prepaid development costs for systems and networks for
the Year (2014: HK$126 million). Excluding the impairment
losses, adjusted EBITDA for the Year was HK$540 million,
compared with HK$830 million for the previous year.

The Group continued to exercise overall cost control
measures. Distribution costs were reduced to HK$32.7
million (2014: HK$37.9 million) in line with the decrease
in turnover, while general and administrative expenses
remained stable at HK$144 million (2014: HK$148 million).
Total staff costs increased to HK$99.3 million (2014:
HK$92.7 million) and research and development costs
expensed were HK$9.1 million (2014: HK$10.3 million).
Amortisation and depreciation expenses dropped to
HK$478 million (2014: HK$556 million) with the slowdown
in the rolling out of development projects. Finance costs
for the Year were HK$1.0 million (2014: HK$0.6 million).

REVIEW OF OPERATIONS

Mainland China’s economy continued to grow at a slower
pace, while uncertainties in many of our major markets
in Europe persisted, and tight controls continued to be
exercised in both public and private sector spending.
The downtrend accelerated in early 2015, putting more
pressure on the demand for the Group’s products and
services. In response to less than favourable market
conditions, and to remain competitive, we had to engage
in sale of lower margin products to maintain momentum.

In Mainland China, we kept up our marketing and sales
activities for customised solutions and products. Our
product portfolio embraced a wide range of integrated
wireless solutions and web-based monitoring systems
mainly designed for remote management and security
applications, as well as customised solutions for the
trading and promotion of cultural products. Spending cuts
by our customers resulted in lower volume of systems
sales and licensing income. The reduction was partially
compensated by increase in sales of cultural products in
response to market demand.

Europe saw a continuing demand for the Group’s personal
security and unified commmunications products which were
capable of embracing a broad range of communications
devices, and were therefore able to command higher
gross margins. In the UK, National Health Services and
Emergency Services continued to account for the bulk of
our business activities. Within the UK, several significant
orders were received during the Year, including those from
a number of large hospitals in London and the North West
of England. Sales in Germany showed modest growth in
real terms despite unpopular government reforms which
had dampened investor confidence. Across the Eurozone,
the Group’s market share was maintained, although
exchange losses were incurred as a result of the weak
Euro.

For e-gaming and online entertainment in Mainland China,
Kantone has suspended the online sale of paperless
lottery since March 2015 pursuant to new regulatory
measures which called for self-examination and self-
correction on unauthorized lottery sale on the internet.
Sales in 2014, before the new measures were introduced,
were strong. It is uncertain when our operation in
lottery-related business will resume. We will comply
with any new rules and regulations promulgated by the
relevant Mainland China regulatory authorities and make
adjustments to our business model accordingly. In view
of this uncertainty and for the sake of financial prudence,
impairment provision of HK$36.8 million for goodwill was
made in the Year.



LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES
Financial Position and Gearing

The Group’s financial position remained positive with a low
gearing throughout the Year. We financed our operation
and business development with internally generated
resources, capital markets instruments and banking
facilities.

As at 30 June 2015, the Group had HK$196 million (2014:
HK$67 million) liquid assets made up of deposits, bank
balances and cash. Current assets were approximately
HK$2,067 million (2014: HK$2,298 million) and current
liabilities amounted to approximately HK$138 million (2014:
HK$110 million). With net current assets of HK$1,930
million (2014: HK$2,188 million), the Group maintained
a comfortable level of liquidity. The gearing ratio of
the Group, defined as the Group’s total borrowings
of HK$13.4 million (2014: HK$31.6 million) to equity
attributable to owners of the Company of HK$3,439
million (2014: HK$3,196 million), was 0.004 (2014: 0.010).

As at 30 June 2015, the Group’s total borrowings mainly
comprised bank loans of HK$13.4 million (2014: HK$31.6
million), with HK$4.7 million (2014: HK$17.3 million)
repayable within one year, HK$4.4 million (2014: HK$4.8
million) repayable in the second year and HK$4.3 million
(2014: HK$9.5 million) repayable in the third to fifth year.
As at 30 June 2015, bank loans of HK$13.4 million (2014:
HK$19.1 million) were secured by the Group’s land and
buildings with a carrying value of HK$7.9 million (2014:
HK$8.8 million). Finance costs for the Year increased to
HK$1.0 million (2014: HK$0.6 million).

In December 2014, the Company consolidated ten
existing shares with par value of HK$0.1 each into one
share with par value of HK$1 of the Company. After the
share consolidation, the Company had 758,875,027
issued shares with par value of HK$1 each.

In January 2015, the Company issued 227,662,506
rights shares of HK$1 each at a subscription price of
HK$1 per rights share on the basis of three rights shares
for every ten existing shares held. The Company raised
approximately HK$223 million (net of expenses) for
general working capital of the Group.
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Treasury Policy

We are committed to financial prudence and maintain a
positive financial position with low gearing. We finance our
operation and business development by a combination
of internally generated resources, capital markets
instruments and banking facilities.

All the borrowings were used by subsidiaries of the
Company bearing interest at floating rates and were
denominated in their local currencies. As such, the
currency risk exposure associated with the Group’s
borrowings was insignificant.

The Group does not engage in any speculative derivatives
or structured product transactions, interest rate or foreign
exchange speculative activities. It is the Group’s policy to
manage foreign exchange risk through matching foreign
exchange income with expense, and where exposure
to foreign exchange is anticipated, appropriate hedging
instruments will be used.

Capital Commitments

As at 30 June 2015, the Group’s capital commitments
authorised but not contracted for were approximately
HK$28 million (2014: HK$22 million). These commitments
were set aside for the acquisition of property, plant and
equipment, and development of systems and networks.

HUMAN RESOURCES AND
REMUNERATION POLICY

As at 30 June 2015, the Group employed about 650 staff
around the globe. Staff costs for the Year were HK$99
million (2014: HK$93 million). Remuneration is determined
with reference to market terms and the performance,
qualifications and experience of the individual employee.
Remuneration includes monthly salaries, performance-
linked bonuses, retirement benefits schemes and other
benefits such as medical scheme.

The Company has established a Human Resources
and Remuneration Committee. In recommending the
remuneration of the directors, the committee will consider
factors such as the Company’s operating results,
individual performance, salaries paid by comparable
companies, time commitment and responsibilities and
employment conditions elsewhere in the Group.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT PROFILE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Professor Paul KAN Man Lok, CBE, GCM, Comm
OSSI, Chevalier de la Légion d’Honneur, SBS, JP, 68,
is the founder of the Group and the Chairman of the
Company. He is also the Chairman and an executive
director of Champion Technology Holdings Limited
(“Champion Technology”), the Company’s holding
company listed on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Exchange”). He
has over 40 years of experience in the computing and
telecommunications industries. Prior to setting up the
Champion Technology group in 1987, he was the general
manager in charge of Asiadata Limited, a computing
services subsidiary of Cable & Wireless PLC.

Professor Kan has received a number of prestigious
awards from several governments and various local
and international professional bodies in recognition of
his contribution to the community and the industry.
Government awards include Commander of the most
Excellent Order of the British Empire (CBE) by Her Majesty
Queen Elizabeth Il (2006); Commendatore dell’Ordine
della Stella della Solidarieta Italiana by the Italian Prime
Minister Hon. Romano Prodi (2006); the Hong Kong SAR
Government’s appointment as a Justice of the Peace
(2006); Chevalier de I'Ordre de la Légion d’Honneur by
the Government of France (2007); Silver Bauhinia Star
by the Hong Kong SAR Government (2009); and FUECH
Grand Cross of Merit for Outstanding Consular Work by
the Federation of European Associations of Honorary
Consuls (FUECH) (2013). In July 2013, he was appointed
Ambassador Extraordinary and Plenipotentiary of
Hungary.

Professional awards include Governor’s Award for Hong
Kong Industries (1989); Young Industrialist Award (1992);
and Hong Kong Business Award-Enterprise Trophy (1993).
He holds a Master’s degree in Business Administration
from the Chinese University of Hong Kong. He also
received academic awards which include Honorary Fellow
of the Academy of Chinese Studies (2005); and Honorary
Professor of Szent Istvan University in Budapest, Hungary
(2011).

In civic duties, Professor Kan is currently the Honorary
President and former Chairman (2001-2011) of the Hong
Kong Information Technology Industry Council, and
Chairman of Hong Kong IT Alliance (1999 - present). He
is @ member of the Council of The Chinese University of
Hong Kong, and the Election Committee for the Hong
Kong representatives of National People’s Congress
of China for three terms from 2002 to 2017. He was a
member of HKSAR Chief Executive Election Committee
for the IT sector for three consecutive terms from 1996 to
2012. He also served twice on the Exchange’s Corporate
Governance Working Group during 1994-1995 and
1999-2000, and was a member of the Listing Committee
of the Exchange for the period 1999-2003. He was
the Chairman of the Hong Kong Trade Development
Council Information and Communications Technology
Services Advisory Committee from 2006 to 2010 and ICT
Working Group, Hong Kong — United Kingdom Business
Partnership from 2004 to 2007. He had also served as a
member of the Hong Kong Trade Development Council
Electronics/Electrical Appliances Industry Advisory
Committee for 10 years from 1997 to 2006.

Professor Kan had been an independent non-executive
director of CLP Holdings Limited for about 9 years
from 2001 until he retired in 2010 to take up the
additional responsibility as Honorary Consul of Hungary
in Hong Kong and Macao from 2011 to 2013. He
had been the Chairman and an executive director of
DIGITALHONGKONG.COM (“Digital HK”), a company
listed on the GEM Board of the Exchange and a former
subsidiary of Champion Technology, until he resigned on
16 October 2014.

LAI Yat Kwong, 66, is the Acting Chief Executive Officer
and Chief Financial Officer of the Company. He is also
the Chief Financial Officer and an executive director
of Champion Technology. He joined the Champion
Technology group in March 1994 as Vice President
of Internal Audit and Control. In July 1997, he took
on responsibility as the Chief Financial Officer of the
Company. He holds a Bachelor’s degree in Business
Administration from the Chinese University of Hong Kong
and has over 43 years of experience in accounting,
auditing and company secretarial matters. He is a
fellow member of the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants, the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (Practising) and the Hong Kong Institute
of Directors. Since January 20183, he has been an
independent non-executive director of Chinalco Mining
Corporation International, shares of which are listed on the
Main Board of the Exchange. He was also an independent
non-executive director of Trony Solar Holdings Company
Limited from October 2011 to February 2013 and had
been a non-executive director of Digital HK until he
resigned on 16 October 2014.
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Shirley HA Suk Ling, 59, had been a non-executive
director of the Company since November 2004 and was
re-designated as an executive director of the Company
with effect from 1 July 2015 due to work reallocation
within the Group. She is also a non-executive director
of Champion Technology which she joined in 1992
as its Executive Vice President with responsibility for
its corporate development. She has over 25 years of
business experience including 10 years in investment
banking.

Ms. Ha holds a Bachelor’s degree in Arts from the
University of Hong Kong and a Master’s degree in Business
Administration from the Chinese University of Hong Kong.
She is currently a member of Digital 21 Strategy Advisory
Committee; the Board of Review (Inland Revenue
Ordinance); the Project Assessment Panel of the Small
Entrepreneur Research Assistance Programme (SERAP);
and the Advisory Group on Eliminating Discrimination
Against Sexual Minorities. She is an Executive Committee
Member of the Hong Kong Information Technology
Industry Council, Executive Committee Extended Member
of the Hong Kong Information Technology Joint Council
and a member of the Hong Kong Corporate Counsel
Association. She had been an executive director of Digital
HK until she resigned on 16 October 2014.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Leo KAN Kin Leung, 59, has been a non-executive
director of the Company since June 2001. He is the Chief
Executive Officer and an executive director of Champion
Technology. He and Professor Paul Kan, Chairman of the
Company, are brothers. He is responsible for formulating
the Champion Technology group’s overall policy and
development strategy as well as its global operations and
management. Prior to joining the Champion Technology
group in 1988, Mr. Kan held management positions
in several international companies in Hong Kong. He
holds a Master’s degree in Business Administration from
Dalhousie University in Canada and a Master’s degree
in Economics from the University of Alberta in Canada.
In 2006, Mr. Kan completed the Oxford Advanced
Management Programme at the Said Business School of
the University of Oxford.

Mr. Kan is the Chairman of the Hong Kong Information
Technology Industry Council, the Vice Chairman of
Hong Kong IT Alliance as well as the Chairman of its
IT Committee. He is the Deputy Chairman of the Hong
Kong Internet Registration Corporation Limited and a
member of the Design Council of Hong Kong. Mr. Kan
is also a Council Member of the Hong Kong Information
Technology Joint Council and a General Committee
Member of the Federation of Hong Kong Industries. He
had been a non-executive director of Digital HK until he
resigned on 16 October 2014.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

Frank BLEACKLEY, 78, has been an independent
non-executive director of the Company since November
2001. He is also an independent non-executive director
of Champion Technology. He was formerly the Managing
Director of Chubb China Holdings Limited, a subsidiary
of the former Chubb Security Group, a manufacturer and
distributor of security and safety products and systems
headquartered in the UK. He has considerable experience
in the management and business development of joint
venture companies in East Asia.

Professor Julia TSUEI Jo, 88, has been an independent
non-executive director of the Company since October
2003. She has over 40 years of experience in medicine
and biomedical research, in particular, Traditional Chinese
Medicine. She had taught in the various medical schools
in the U.S., Taiwan and Mainland China and is well-
acclaimed in the Chinese community of Biological as well
as Bioenergetic International Medicine Research. Her
research achievements in bridging east-west medicine
also earned her much recognition in the international
arena, as demonstrated by the numerous awards she
has received. These include the Lifetime Achievement
Award granted by the International Institute for Advanced
Studies in Systems Research and Cybernetics, Baden-
Baden, Germany in 2001; the Founding Patron and
Lifetime Member conferred by the American Association
of Acupuncture and Bio-energetic Medicine in 1991;
and Lifetime Achievement Award granted by the 4th
International Forum on Biological and Bioenergetic
Medicine in July 2014. She had been the Chairman of
Acupuncture Research Foundation of the Acupuncture
and Moxibustion Society of China during 1995-2005;
and was the founder of the International Medical Science
Research Foundation in the U.S. and Taiwan in 1988.

Professor Tsuei is presently President of Foundation
for East-West Medicine, U.S.; President of American
Association of the Acupuncture and Bio-energetic
Medicine U.S.; Professor Emeritus of School of Public
Health, University of Hawaii, U.S.; Director of Clinic
for East-West Medicine, Taiwan; Founding Director
of Graduate Institute of Traditional Chinese Medicine,
National Yang-Ming University, Taiwan; and Founding
Board member of Chinese Bio-Electromagnetic Science
Association.




DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT PROFILE

Miranda HO Mo Han, 45, has been an independent
non-executive director of the Company since January
2008, and is the Chairman of the audit committee of the
Company. She is a director of Billy Ho and Associates
CPA Limited and is a Certified Public Accountant
(Practising) of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants; a Fellow Member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Directors; and an Associate Member of the
American Institute of Certified Public Accountants. She
holds a Master’s degree in Business Administration from
Oklahoma City University, U.S. Ms. Ho has participated
in community services as a member of the Federation
of Hong Kong Zhong Shan Community Organisations
Limited for years.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Jennifer CHEUNG Mei Ha, 59, has been the Company
Secretary since January 2005. She is a solicitor practising
in Hong Kong. She is also the Company Secretary of
Champion Technology.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

FUNG Kin Leung, 54, is the Group’s Head of
Innovation with responsibilities for managing the Group’s
research and development capacity to facilitate its
global operations. He is also a director of several of the
Group’s subsidiaries and a Senior Vice President of
Microelectronics of Champion Technology. Mr. Fung
has over 25 years’ experience in software and product
development. He joined the Champion Technology
group in 1987 as Technical Manager, and was promoted
through the ranks to his current position. In recent years,
he has been focusing on the development of information
delivery systems to enhance wireless internet applications.
He holds a Bachelor’s degree in Science and Electronics
from the Hong Kong Polytechnic University and a Master’s
degree in Electronics Engineering from the University
of Hong Kong. He is a Chartered Engineer as well as a
member of the Institution of Electrical Engineers and the
Hong Kong Institution of Engineers.
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Stephen GENTRY, 59, is the Group’s Head of
International Business and the Chief Executive of Multitone
Electronics Plc (“Multitone”), a member company of
the Group, with responsibilities for formulating the
overall policy and development strategy for the Group’s
international operations. He is also a director of several
of the Group’s subsidiaries. He joined the Group in 1988
as financial accountant of the UK operations, and has
considerable experience working for the Group’s various
European and American operations. He was promoted to
the position of Chief Executive of Multitone in 2003 and is
a member of the Institute of Directors.

Frank ROTTHOFF, 52, is the Managing Director of the
Group’s German operations. He joined the Group in 2008
and has extensive experience in sales and marketing
management in the electronics industry. His earlier career
covered international sales of industrial machinery and
process technology before entering the semiconductor
sector in 1989. He was responsible for the sales
organisation of a leading European distributor of electronic
components before joining the Group.

Ron WRAY, 54, is the Group’s Technical Director of
International Business with responsibilities for overseeing
the Group’s technical operations as well as developing
the strategy for the Group’s investment in research and
development. He has over 25 years of experience in the
radio and the electronics industry and the Royal Navy.
He is an associate member of the Institute of Sales and
Marketing Managers and a member of the Institute of
Directors.

Philip LAWRENCE, 57, is the Finance Director for the
Group’s European operations. He is a Fellow of the
Chartered Institute of Management Accountants and
has worked in finance for over 30 years. He has worked
in various companies ranging from large international
company in the world to SMEs (small medium enterprises)
covering engineering, fast moving consumer goods,
power, transport, care, warehousing and distribution.
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Clive McGOVERN, 53, is the UK and International Sales
Director for the Group, having previously worked at a
senior level for technology businesses both in Europe and
America. He is a member of the Institute of Directors and
the Chartered Institute of Marketing. He holds a Master’s
degree and a Bachelor’s degree in Science. His business
experience encompasses sales, marketing, support
engineering, European patent law as well as accounting
and finance.

Helen BROWN, 61, joined the Group in 1991 and is the
Head of Human Resources for the Group’s international
operations. She is qualified with the Institute of Personnel
Development and has extensive experience covering
employment legislation, industrial relations, change
management, recruitment and human resources policy.

Andrew Jones, 52, joined the Group in 2010 and is
the Director of Marketing for the Group’s European
operations. He has an MBA and is a member of the
Chartered Institute of Marketing. He has previously worked
for a number of leading communication companies
including Cable & Wireless and brings to the Group his
significant experience in developing sales and marketing
strategies within the UK and international markets.

Luiz Octavio VILLA-LOBOS, 54, is the Managing
Director of the Group’s Brazilian operations with
responsibility for running and developing business in
South America. He is also the Vice President of Interactive
Knowledge Delivery for Champion Technology group’s
international operations, overseeing international clients’
requirements for enterprise solutions. He joined the Group
in 1997 and set up its business in Brazil from inception.
He holds a Master’s degree in Aerospace Engineering
from Sup’Aero in France and an MBA from the London
Business School.

Roy GOSS, 72, is the Company'’s Director of International
Business, with responsibility for the Group’s contract
negotiation, licensee management, agency distribution
and customer liaison. He is based in Macau and is also a
director of several of the Group’s subsidiaries. Mr. Goss
is a seasoned expert in finance and telecommunications,
having served in the Middle East and Macau with Cable
& Wireless PLC for more than 17 years. He is a fellow
member of the Institute of Chartered Accountants in
England and Wales. Prior to joining the Champion
Technology group, he was the Finance Director of Macau
Telecommunications Company, a subsidiary of Cable &
Wireless PLC.

WAN Yan Chang, 63, is the Company’s Head of
Administration and Accounting in China responsible for
overseeing the day-to-day administrative procedures
for the Group’s quality control, assurance of logistics
operations, as well as licensee and customer relationship
in China. Ms. Wan joined the Group in 1993. She has
extensive experience in China trade.

Robert SIA Chun Chung, 43, is the Vice President,
e-Commerce Projects of the Group responsible for
overseeing technical management and systems
support. He holds a Bachelor’s degree in Electrical and
Electronic Engineering from the University of Hong Kong
and a Master’s degree in Electronic Engineering from
the Polytechnic University of Hong Kong. He has also
completed a business programme of the eMBA studies
at the Haas School of Business, University of California
Berkeley. Mr. Sia has been with the Champion Technology
group since 1995 and has worked with a number of
divisions within the group. He also serves on the Hong
Kong IT Alliance as an executive committee member
and the Telecommunications Regulatory Affairs Advisory
Committee at the Office of the Communications Authority
as alternate member.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EFERE

The directors present their annual report and the audited
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 30 June
2015.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. Its subsidiaries
are principally engaged in sales of cultural products and sales
of systems and licensing (including sales of systems products,
software licensing and customisation, provision of services and
leasing of systems products.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS
The results of the Group for the year ended 30 June 2015 are
set out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income on page 27 and in the accompanying
notes to the consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the share capital of the Company during
the year are set out in note 25 to the consolidated financial
statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVE OF THE COMPANY
The Company'’s reserves available for distribution represents
the aggregate of special reserve and retained profits of
HK$210,603,000 (2014: HK$218,350,000).

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in property, plant and equipment of the
Group during the year are set out in note 13 to the consolidated
financial statements.

DIRECTORS AND SERVICE CONTRACTS

The directors of the Company during the year and up to the date
of this report are:

Executive directors:
Prof. Paul Kan Man Lok
Mr. Lai Yat Kwong

Ms. Shirley Ha Suk Ling*

Non-executive director:
Mr. Leo Kan Kin Leung

Independent non-executive directors:
Mr. Frank Bleackley

Prof. Julia Tsuei Jo

Ms. Miranda Ho Mo Han

* Ms. Shirley Ha Suk Ling, a non-executive director up to 30 June
2015, was redesigned as an executive director of the Company
with effect from 1 July 2015.
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DIRECTORS AND SERVICE CONTRACTS - continued
In accordance with Article 87 of the Company’s Articles of
Association, Ms. Shirley Ha Suk Ling, Prof. Julia Tsuei Jo and Ms.
Miranda Ho Mo Han will retire at the forthcoming annual general
meeting and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

No director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting has a service contract which is not determinable
by the Group within one year without payment of compensation
(other than statutory compensation).

Each of the non-executive directors has a service contract with
the Company for a term of up to the date on which he/she shall
retire by rotation in an annual general meeting of the Company
in accordance with the Articles of Association of the Company.
The executive directors do not have any service contract with the
Company.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE

The Company confirms it has received from each of its
independent non-executive directors an annual confirmation
of his/her independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”), and considers that the
independent non-executive directors are independent.

SHARE OPTIONS AND DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO
ACQUIRE SHARES OR DEBENTURES

Each of the Company and its ultimate holding company,
Champion Technology Holdings Limited (“Champion”), has a
share option scheme under which eligible persons, including
directors of the Company, Champion or any of their respective
subsidiaries, may be granted options to subscribe for shares of
the Company and Champion respectively.

(i) The Company
On 30 November 2012, the Company adopted the share
option scheme (the “Scheme”). No option has been granted
by the Company under the Scheme since its adoption.
Particulars of the Scheme are set out in note 26 to the
consolidated financial statements.
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SHARE OPTIONS AND DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO BREREEEERDIESFT 2ER

ACQUIRE SHARES OR DEBENTURES - continued —E
(ii) Champion (i) EE

On 30 November 2012, Champion adopted a share option RIZT——F+—A=1+0 BEHH—IEE
scheme (the “Champion Option Scheme”). The purpose of BEAE([EEEBRESS]) - TEBEIE
the Champion Option Scheme was to attract and to retain SEZENERTSI RBREEFSASREM
quality personnel and other persons and to provide them AT WAKRSRHERER  BEFSEEER
with incentive to contribute to the business and operation EWMBAR(CBEER )2 EBLEEERLE
of Champion and its subsidiaries (the “Champion Group”). B BECTCEBRETSE  TSEEEA AT
Under the Champion Option Scheme, the directors of T HMBARSKBBEAR A MES EE
Champion might grant options to any directors, employees SRR AXRBmABRRLMERATSEER
or consultants of Champion, its subsidiaries or affiliates or BERNRZIEME2EEL  UNEEEEZR
any discretionary trust whose discretionary objects included P rEms A AREERE - URETE
the aforesaid persons or a company beneficially owned by 2B e BEEREZEBRIETREESHME
the aforesaid persons as well as customers, suppliers or T2 HAEBERTT(E - MEFTEE 2 BN Al 2
advisers of the Champion Group, to subscribe for shares of BREBERERL BRI TF - BETEHER
Champion. The option granted by Champion is exercisable BB ERE 2 BRTEE (IR AEF
at any time for a period determined by its directors which ZIEEHAR) BN GEE  ((WERER
should not be more than ten years from the date of grant. H(BEASER)BEBHARSIMARARR
The exercise price per share (subject to adjustment as ST S ERERTRBIRMHDUTE (i)
provided therein) of the option under the Champion ZEFY A AEALSE X FMERARER
Option Scheme is the highest of (i) the nominal value of R Bl FHRTE ZExmaEA
the shares; (ii) the closing price per share as stated in the A o BERMNAK - EEMEAR IS E BT
daily quotation sheet of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong B AT B AR A -

Limited (the “Exchange”) on the date of grant, which must
be a business day; and (iii) the average closing price per
share as stated in the daily quotation sheet of the Exchange
for the five business days immediately preceding the date of
grant. No option has been granted by Champion under the
Champion Option Scheme since its adoption.

Other than the share option schemes described above, at no time [ _E 2 frift 2 BERSREST 19N - ANAT] - E3ZRAR]
during the year was the Company, its holding company, any of its  E{F{a][a] Z M B A 7]k HI B A Bl E A EE A F (] kRS
fellow subsidiaries or subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to B E(FAZH - BUF A AR EETFEBEALAD
enable the directors of the Company to acquire benefits by means &I F Al E fibix A B2 > D i (G5 Mz o

of acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any

other body corporate.




DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITIONS IN SECURITIES

As at 30 June 2015, the interests of the directors of the
Company in the shares of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities
and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO”)) which were recorded in the
register required to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section
352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and the
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers, were as follows:

ESCESEERAR

RZZB-—RFRNA=ZTHE  BREZFRAEGEI(TE
HREIEIED ) FB2GRERRRATEEZER
MAracs - R EMEITAESETESFZIHM
ZEFADAARRARARRZHBTIEL ZBA - AR
REFERD RS EEEEEE(EE RESF R
BIEDIEXVED) 2 B iR R 2 i T

Approximate

percentage

Number of the issued

Name of director Capacity of shares share capital

HEBTRE

EEpg E220) RDEE ZHR =

Shares of the Company Prof. Paul Kan Man Lok Corporate interest Note 1 64.94%
RRER [EREZ6 NEER B

Shares of Champion Prof. Paul Kan Man Lok Corporate interest Note 2 27.90%
BERGD D€ =63 NEHER fizE2

Notes: Bi5E

1. 640,689,792 shares of the Company were held by Champion.
Lawnside International Limited (“Lawnside”) is beneficially wholly
owned by Prof. Paul Kan Man Lok. Prof. Paul Kan Man Lok was
deemed to have corporate interest in the shares of the Company
held by Champion.

2. 1,766,860,957 shares of Champion were held by Lawnside. Prof.
Paul Kan Man Lok was deemed to have corporate interest in the
shares of Champion held by Lawnside.

Save as disclosed above, none of the directors or chief executive
of the Company had any interest or short position in the shares,
underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporations (as defined in Part XV of the SFO) as
at 30 June 2015 as recorded in the register required to be kept
by the Company under Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise
notified to the Company and the Exchange pursuant to the Model
Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers.

1. 640,689,792k AN EIMR A BB EHF A ° Lawnside
International Limited([Lawnside ) fA i SC 44505 B 25
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2. 1,766,860,957 %5 B A% 17 FLawnsidelf & » B304
BEIER AR ZEHLawnsideF B2 BER M
BARIRER
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS AND
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the year, the Group had the following transactions with
Champion and its subsidiaries (other than the Group):

ANNUAL REPORT 2015

SESNANRBER S 2%

RAFER  NEFLETEREMB QR (KRB
SN BET TR

Nature of transactions REME HK$’000
THET
Fees paid by the Group to Champion for the provision of office AEERBEERAER S HERRAZER
premises and facilities, and management services, on cost basis REUAREERE 2 & 900
Fees paid by the Group to Champion for treasury services REBRBEL NG HREZER 665
Commission paid by the Group to Champion for the issue of shares REBRTE L METARRRRD
of the Company P 2,566

In the opinion of the independent non-executive directors,
the above transactions relating to Champion’s provision of
office premises and facilities and management services to the
Group pursuant to an agreement dated 5 January 2010 (the
“Management Agreement”) were carried out in the usual course of
business and on normal commercial terms and are in accordance
with the relevant agreement governing it on terms that are fair
and reasonable and in the interests of the shareholders of the
Company as a whole.

Details of such connected transactions are set out in note 30 to
the consolidated financial statements.

The Management Agreement constitutes a continuing connected
transaction under the Listing Rules exempt from the reporting,
announcement and shareholders’ approval requirements under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

The Company and Champion entered into an underwriting
agreement dated 28 November 2014 (as supplemented on 16
December 2014) in relation to the rights issue of 227,662,506
rights shares of the Company at the subscription price of HK$1
per rights share (the “Rights Issue”) whereby Champion agreed
to underwrite the Rights Issue at the total commission of about
HK$2,566,259.

The Company confirms that it has complied with the disclosure
requirements in accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules.

Save as disclosed above, no contract of significance to which the
Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which a
director of the Company had a material interest, whether directly
or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during
the year.

Save as disclosed above, there is no contract of significance
between the Group and a controlling shareholder of the Company
(as defined in the Listing Rules) or any of its subsidiaries, including
the provision of services to the Group.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDER

As at 30 June 2015, the following person (other than the directors
or chief executive of the Company) had interests in the share
capital of the Company as recorded in the register required to be
kept by the Company under Section 336 of the SFO:

Capacity

513

Beneficial owner
BEmEA A

Champion (Note)
T (FH3E)

Note: See note 1 to the “Directors’ Interests and Short Positions in
Securities” section above.

Save as disclosed above, no person had any interest or short
position in the shares or underlying shares of the Company
according to the register required to be kept by the Company
under Section 336 of the SFO as at 30 June 2015.

CONVERTIBLE SECURITIES, OPTIONS,
WARRANTS OR SIMILAR RIGHTS

The Company had no outstanding convertible securities, options,
warrants or other similar rights as at 30 June 2015 and there had
been no exercise of any convertible securities, options, warrants
or similar rights during the year.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

During the year, the Company had purchased 6 shares of HK$0.1
each of the Company at the total price of HK$0.516 on the
Exchange and cancelled such shares. Save as aforesaid, neither
the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the year.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s Articles of Association or the laws of the Cayman
Islands which would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a
pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The Group sells its products to customers who act as its
distributors, and purchases materials and components from
suppliers who act as its merchandisers.

For the year ended 30 June 2015, the aggregate amount of
turnover and purchases attributable to the five largest ultimate
customers and suppliers through these distributors and
merchandisers respectively represented less than 30% of the
Group’s total turnover and purchases.

None of the directors, their close associates or any shareholders,
which to the knowledge of the directors own more than 5% of
the Company’s issued share capital, had any interest in the share
capital of the five largest customers or suppliers of the Company.
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REMUNERATION POLICY

The remuneration of the employees of the Group is determined
with reference to market terms and the performance, qualifications
and experience of the individual employee.

The emoluments of the directors of the Company are
recommended by the Human Resources and Remuneration
Committee of the Company after considering factors such as the
Company’s operating results, individual performance, salaries
paid by comparable companies, and time commitment and
responsibilities of the relevant director.

The Company has adopted a share option scheme as an incentive
to directors and eligible employees. Details of the scheme are set
out in note 26 to the consolidated financial statements.

PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information publicly available to the Company and within
the knowledge of the directors, as at the date of this report, there is
sufficient public float of not less than 25% of the Company’s issued
shares as required under the Listing Rules.

AUDITOR

A resolution will be proposed at the forthcoming annual general
meeting of the Company to re-appoint Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
as auditor of the Company.

By order of the Board

Paul KAN Man Lok
CHAIRMAN

Hong Kong
18 September 2015
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company is committed to maintaining a high standard of
corporate governance practices. It met all the code provisions of
the Corporate Governance Code (the “Code”) set out in Appendix
14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”) in the year
ended 30 June 2015.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding
directors’ securities transactions on terms set out in the Model
Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the
“Model Code”) contained in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules.

The Company has made specific enquiry of all directors of the
Company, and they have confirmed compliance with the required
standard set out in the Model Code during the year ended 30
June 2015.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Company is governed by a board of directors (the “Board”)
which has the responsibility for leadership and control of the
Company. The directors are collectively responsible for promoting
the success of the Group by directing and supervising the
Group’s affairs. The Board set strategies and directions for the
Group’s activities with a view to developing its business and
enhancing shareholder value.

The composition of the Board during the year was as follows:

Executive directors
Prof. Paul KAN Man Lok* (Chairman)
Mr. LAl Yat Kwong (Acting Chief Executive Officer)

Non-executive directors
Mr. Leo KAN Kin Leung*
Ms. Shirley HA Suk LingA

Independent non-executive directors
Mr. Frank BLEACKLEY

Prof. Julia TSUEI Jo

Ms. Miranda HO Mo Han

* Prof. Paul KAN Man Lok and Mr. Leo KAN Kin Leung are brothers.

A Ms. Shirley HA Suk Ling has been re-designated as an executive
director of the Company with effect from 1 July 2015 due to work
reallocation within the Group.

The Board held 10 meetings during the year ended 30 June 2015.
All directors attended these meetings.

During the year ended 30 June 2015, the Company held 2
general meetings. All directors attended the meetings.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS - continued

The Company is committed to arranging and funding suitable
training to all directors for their continuous professional
development. During the year ended 30 June 2015 and up to
the date of this report, Prof. Paul KAN Man Lok, Mr. LAl Yat
Kwong, Ms. Shirley HA Suk Ling, Mr. Leo KAN Kin Leung, Mr.
Frank BLEACKLEY, Prof. Julia TSUEI Jo and Ms. Miranda HO
Mo Han engaged in business activities in their respective fields as
continuous professional development to develop and refresh their
knowledge and skills so as to ensure that their contributions to
the Board remain informed and relevant. Ms. Miranda HO Mo Han
and Mr. LAl Yat Kwong participated in continuous professional
development programs required by The Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. The directors also participated in
other trainings and professional developments such as attending
or holding seminars, giving speeches or studying reading materials
relating to the Group or its industries and businesses; rules and
regulations; business management; or the roles, functions and
duties of a listed company director.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

The roles of Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of the Company
are separate and performed by different individuals with a clear
division of responsibilities.

The Chairman is responsible for the leadership of the Board,
ensuring its effectiveness in all aspects of its role and for setting
its agenda and taking into account any matters proposed by
other directors for inclusion in the agenda. Through the Board,
he is responsible for ensuring that good corporate governance
practices and procedures are followed by the Group.

The Chief Executive Officer is responsible for the day-to-day
management of the Group’s business.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The non-executive directors of the Company are appointed for
a term of up to the date on which the directors shall retire by
rotation at the Company’s annual general meeting in accordance
with the Code and the Articles of Association of the Company.

HUMAN RESOURCES AND REMUNERATION
COMMITTEE

The Human Resources and Remuneration Committee (the
“Remuneration Committee”) has 5 members, comprising Ms.
Miranda HO Mo Han, Mr. Frank BLEACKLEY and Prof. Julia
TSUEI Jo (all independent non-executive directors); Mr. Leo KAN
Kin Leung (a non-executive director); and Ms. Shirley HA Suk Ling
(an executive director). The Remuneration Committee is chaired
by Ms. Miranda HO Mo Han.

The Remuneration Committee has reviewed and approved the
Group’s remuneration policy, including that for the executive
directors, and the levels of remuneration paid to executive
directors and senior management of the Group. The terms of
reference of the Remuneration Committee follow the guidelines
set out in the Code and it is responsible for, among other things,
making recommendations to the Board on the remuneration
packages of individual executive directors and senior
management.
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HUMAN RESOURCES AND REMUNERATION
COMMITTEE - continued

During the year ended 30 June 2015, the Remuneration
Committee held 2 meetings and work performed included
reviewing the Group’s remuneration policy for its executive
directors and senior management and their levels of remuneration.
All members attended these meetings.

The remuneration payable to the directors of the Company for the
year ended 30 June 2015 is set out in note 9 to the Company’s
consolidated financial statements. For the year ended 30 June
2015, the remuneration payable to 7 members of the senior
management of the Company was within the range of HK$0 to
HK$1,000,000; whereas the remuneration payable to 5 members
of the senior management of the Company was within the range
of HK$1,000,001 to HK$2,500,000.

BOARD DIVERSITY

The Board has adopted a policy concerning diversity of Board
members (the “Board Diversity Policy”) which is summarized as
follows:

The Company is committed to maintaining a highly effective Board
which should have a balance of skills, experience and diversity
of perspectives appropriate to the requirements of its business.
When deciding on the appointment of directors, it is the policy
of the Company to consider a number of factors, including but
not limited to, gender, age, cultural and educational background,
professional experience, and other qualifications, skills and
experience which the Company considers will make a positive
contribution to the performance of the Board.

The Nomination Committee of the Company monitors the
implementation of the Board Diversity Policy and reviews it from
time to time and shall bring to the attention of the Board any
significant issues or recommendations as and when necessary
and appropriate. Any reviews, updates and amendments to the
Board Diversity Policy shall be approved by the Board.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination Committee has 5 members, comprising Ms.
Miranda HO Mo Han, Mr. Frank BLEACKLEY and Prof. Julia
TSUEI Jo (all independent non-executive directors); and Ms.
Shirley HA Suk Ling and Prof. Paul KAN Man Lok (both executive
directors). This Committee is chaired by Ms. Miranda HO Mo Han.

The terms of reference of the Nomination Committee have been
determined with reference to the Code.

The Nomination Committee is responsible for identifying potential
new directors and making recommendations to the Board for
decision. A director appointed by the Board is subject to re-
election by shareholders at the first annual general meeting
after his/her appointment. All directors are subject to retirement
by rotation at least once every 3 years. In accordance with the
Company’s Articles of Association, one third of the directors are
subject to retirement by rotation and re-election by shareholders
at each annual general meeting of the Company.
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE - continued

Potential new directors are selected with reference to the Board
Diversity Policy.

During the year ended 30 June 2015, the Nomination Committee
had made a recommendation to the Board on the re-designation
of Ms. Shirley HA Suk Ling from a non-executive director to an
executive director of the Company due to work reallocation within
the Group. The re-designation was approved by the Board and
took effect from 1 July 2015. No new director was nominated for
appointment during the year ended 30 June 2015.

The Nomination Committee held 3 meetings during the year
ended 30 June 2015 and work performed included reviewing
the structure, size and composition of the Board and the
independence of the independent non-executive directors of the
Company. All members attended these meetings.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board has adopted the terms of reference for corporate
governance functions set out in the Code and has delegated the
Group’s corporate governance functions to the Audit Committee.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee has 4 members, comprising Ms. Miranda
HO Mo Han, Mr. Frank BLEACKLEY and Prof. Julia TSUEI Jo
(all independent non-executive directors); and Mr. Leo KAN
Kin Leung (a non-executive director). The Chairperson of this
Committee is Ms. Miranda HO Mo Han.

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee, with the inclusion
of the corporate governance functions, follow the guidelines set
out in the Code. The Audit Committee is responsible for, among
other things, reviewing the Group’s financial information and its
financial reporting, corporate governance and internal control
matters, including the adequacy of resources, staff qualifications
and experience, training programmes and budget of the Group’s
accounting and financial reporting function. The Audit Committee
reports to the Board any significant issues relating to its terms of
reference.

During the year ended 30 June 2015, the Audit Committee held
2 meetings and work performed included reviewing the Group’s
interim and annual results, its internal control system, and
corporate governance matters including reviewing the Corporate
Governance Report for inclusion in the Company’s Annual Report.
All members attended these meetings.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

For the year ended 30 June 2015, the fee for the Company’s
external auditor for audit services was about HK$2,529,000 (2014:
HK$2,658,000) and that for non-audit services mainly relating
to taxation matters and rights issue of the Company was about
HK$831,000 (2014: HK$177,000).
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

The directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the
accounts of the Company. As at 30 June 2015, the directors
are not aware of any material uncertainties relating to events or
conditions which may cast significant doubt upon the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern. Accordingly, the directors
have prepared the financial statements of the Company on a
going-concern basis.

The responsibilities of the external auditor about their financial
reporting are set out in the Independent Auditor’s Report attached
to the Company’s consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 30 June 2015.

The Board has, through the Audit Committee, conducted a
review of the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control system
with an aim to safeguard the shareholders’ investment and the
Company’s assets in compliance with the provisions of the Code.
The purpose is to provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance
against material misstatements, errors, losses or fraud, and to
manage rather than eliminate risks of failure in achieving the
Group’s business objectives.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company engages Ms. Jennifer CHEUNG Mei Ha, a
practising solicitor in Hong Kong, as its company secretary. Its
primary corporate contact person at the Company is Mr. LAl Yat
Kwong, the Acting Chief Executive Officer of the Company.

COMMUNICATIONS WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Company maintains an on-going dialogue with its
shareholders through various channels including announcements
and annual and interim reports published on its website at
http://www.kantone.com and the Company’s general meetings.
All shareholders are encouraged to attend general meetings and
they may also put to the Board any enquiries about the Group
through its website at http://www.kantone.com or in writing
sent to the principal office of the Company at 5th Floor, Kantone
Centre, 1 Ning Foo Street, Chaiwan, Hong Kong. The directors,
company secretary or other appropriate members of senior
management respond to enquiries from shareholders promptly.
The Chairman, the Acting Chief Executive Officer, chairpersons
of board committees (or their respective delegates) and external
auditor attend the annual general meeting and are available to
answer questions raised by shareholders. Shareholders may
also access the Company’s corporate website for the Group’s
information.
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COMMUNICATIONS WITH SHAREHOLDERS

— continued

Pursuant to Article 58 of the Company’s Articles of Association,
two or more shareholders holding at the date of deposit of the
requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the
Company carrying the right of voting at general meetings of the
Company shall at all times have the right, by written requisition to
the Board or the company secretary, to require an extraordinary
general meeting to be called by the Board for the transaction
of any business (including any proposals) specified in such
requisition, and such meeting shall be held within two months
after the deposit of such requisition. If within twenty-one days of
such deposit the Board fails to proceed to convene such meeting
the requisitionists themselves may do so in the same manner.

CHANGES IN CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS
During the year ended 30 June 2015, the Company had, in
compliance with the new requirements of Appendix 3 to the
Listing Rules, amended its Articles of Association to disallow (i) a
director to vote on any board resolution approving any contract or
arrangement or any other proposal in which he or any of his close
associates has a material interest or be counted in the quorum
present at the meeting; and (ii) the Company to make a loan to
a director or close associates of its director if and to the extent
it would be prohibited by the Companies Ordinance (Chapter
622 of the laws of Hong Kong) if the Company were a company
incorporated in Hong Kong.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
RS IR

Deloitte.
=)

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF KANTONE HOLDINGS LIMITED
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Kantone
Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 27 to 88, which
comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at 30
June 2015, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes
in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year
then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and
other explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors determine
is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit and to report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with our agreed terms
of engagement, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for
the contents of this report. We conducted our audit in accordance
with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those standards
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements are free from material
misstatement.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY - continued

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments,
the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that give a
true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group as at 30 June
2015 and of the Group’s profit and cash flows for the year
then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards and have been properly prepared in accordance
with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong
18 September 2015
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
GeEaREtEZEKER

For The Year Ended 30 June 2015 B =—Z—AF,XA=1THILFE

2015 2014
—E-EF —TmEF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHERT FAT
Turnover S 6 2,544,174 2,720,286
Cost of sales SHERA (2,305,007) (2,259,357)
Gross profit Evit] 239,167 460,929
Other income HeA 7 8,521 8,721
Distribution costs DR (32,651) (37,927)
General and administrative expenses — R RATHE (144,398) (147,525)
Impairment losses recognised for development 5t 245 & 4948 B 34k AR FrfesR 2
costs for systems and networks EEEE 14 (10,800) (142,000)
Impairment loss recognised for goodwill SRR REEE 15 (36,795) -
Impairment losses recognised for deposits and  gt#% 4 R FE MBI AFTER 2
prepaid development costs HEEE 16 = (126,474)
Research and development costs expensed — #ff3% M B3R AN S (9,148) (10,349)
Finance costs BB 8 (1,023) (615)
Profit before taxation BREATEF 9 12,873 4,760
Taxation BiE 10 (2,205) -
Profit for the year REEHEF 10,668 4,760
Other comprehensive income (expense): Hit2mEWas () ¢
[tem that will not be reclassified to profit Bregnrzigsn
or loss: ZIEE
Remeasurement of defined benefits BHTEREARK
pension plans BE:l 5,141 1,079
Item that may be reclassified subsequently HEgmgEnEERnz
to profit or loss: BE
Exchange difference arising on translation EBINERREFEE Y
of foreign operations EHER 5,958 (9,585)
Other comprehensive income (expense) NEEHM AN
for the year (Zi) 11,099 (8,506)
Total comprehensive income (expense) REE2EWE(ZH)
for the year fek 21,767 (3,746)
Profit for the year attributable to: JEAGARF R
Owners of the Company RAREEA 8,927 2,148
Non-controlling interests FEPERR AR A 1,741 2,612
10,668 4,760
Total comprehensive income (expense) for BEAFE2ERE ()
the year attributable to: 1
Owners of the Company UN/NCIEZ=DN 19,998 (6,181)
Non-controlling interests FEVRRR AR A S 1,769 2,435
21,767 (3,746)
Earnings per share — Basic BREN-EX 12 HK1.03 centsi&{li  HK0.28 centsi& 1l
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
mEPBIRR R

At 30 June 2015 R—E—h%FE,XA=1H

2015 2014
=2 HF —TmF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET T
Non-current assets FREBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - B REE 13 41,750 46,284
Development costs for systems and networks — Z % }z 484% 5 24 Al A< 14 1,150,367 1,062,346
Goodwill fEES 15 - 36,795
Deposits and prepaid development costs 1®7& MIER R AR 16 432,510 -
1,624,627 1,145,425
Current assets REBEE
Inventories & 17 20,579 207,535
Trade and other receivables TEWE 5 R E MR 18 1,850,412 2,024,028
Deposits, bank balances and cash TR BITEBERS 19 196,407 66,648
2,067,398 2,298,211
Current liabilities REaE
Trade and other payables FERE 5 N EHMEER 20 131,954 91,741
Warranty provision REBE 21 1,074 1,294
Bank borrowings — BITEE -
amount due within one year MN—FEREIHE] 22 4,720 17,283
137,748 110,318
Net current assets REVEEFE 1,929,650 2,187,893
Total assets less current liabilities BEMABERLREAE 3,554,277 3,333,318
Non-current liabilities FERBARS
Bank borrowings — RITEE—
amount due after one year MR—E%ZIE 22 8,713 14,348
Retirement benefit obligations RIRIE A EHE 23 80,611 99,227
89,324 113,575
Net assets BEFE 3,464,953 3,219,743




2015 2014

=®-5HfF —TlF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET T

Capital and reserves BRA R
Share capital &N 25 986,538 758,875
Reserves E 2,452,450 2,436,672
Equity attributable to owners of the Company ~ ZxA Sl H A FE(L iz 3,438,988 3,195,547
Non-controlling interests FEIE AR AR SR 2 25,965 24,196

3,464,953 3,219,743

The consolidated financial statements on pages 27 to 88 were  F27BEF8BEMH 2 GAVBREEN T —H
approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on  F/LA+/\BHRESEHZ KIRETE - WHTHIE
18 September 2015 and are signed on its behalf by: ERREE

PAUL KAN MAN LOK f&j3z 4% LAI YAT KWONG #H}
DIRECTOR #% DIRECTOR =%
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
GERAERBER

For The Year Ended 30 June 2015 & —Z—AFNA=1tHIFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

RARRE AR
Non-
Share Share  Dividend Translation  Retained controlling
capital ~ premium reserve reserve profits interests
FER
R RGEE RERG EXRE REE RRES
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000
o BT BT BT TAL R
At1July 2013 RZE-=%+f-H 751,603 799,577 7516 8880 1,649,529 3217,1056 21,761 3,238,866
Profitfor the year AEEER - - - - 218 2148 2612 4760
Remeasurement of defined benefits SEFHEENER
pension plans BE] - - - - 1,079 1,079 - 1,079
Exchange difference arising on RESNEREREE
translation of foreign operations EREE - - - (9408 - (9408 (177) (9,589
Total comprehensive (expense) TEERE (M) Ha
income for the year &5 - - - (9408 3,227 6,181) 243 (3,746)
Dividends for the year TERRE
~nterm g - - 15133 - (15139 - - -
Dividends paid EfkE - - (15377 - - (4537 - (1537
Issue of shares as scrip dividend ANRREMBTRG 7272 - [ - - - - -
712 - 519 - (15139 (15377) - (1537)
At 30 June 2014 RZE-MmE~A=1A 758,875 799,677 - (628) 1,637,623 3,195,547 24196 8,219,743
Profit for the year REERH - - - - 8%  8%7 1741 10668
Remeasurement of defined benefits SEFERNER
pension plans HE] - - - - 5,141 5,141 - 5,141
Exchange difference arising on RESNEBIMEREE L
translation of foreign operations ERER - - - 5930 - 5930 28 5,958
Total comprehensive income for the year ~ AEE2E 25 - - - 5930 14088 19998 1769 21,767
Issue of shares Bkl 227,663 - - - - 227,663 - 227,663
Transaction costs attributable to issue BROERRS
of shares A - (4220 - - - (420 - (420
27663 (4220) - - - 203443 - 203443
At 30 June 2015 R-B-REAA=1H 986,538 795,357 - 5402 1,651,691 3,438,988 25965 3,464,953




hFEFER

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

SERERER

For The Year Ended 30 June 2015 B =—Z—AF,XA=1THILFE

2015 2014
—E-IF —T-E
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHERT FAL
Cash flows from operating activities BEEB AR
Profit before taxation BRBATEF 12,873 4,760
Adjustments for: FEE
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment HEME BERXREZER - 77
Interest income AEUWA (3,899) (5,000)
Interest on hank borrowings RITIEEZFE 1,023 615
Amortisation of development costs for systems and R R B RB R
networks a3 466,473 543,405
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment ME - BEREZINE 11,783 12,468
Impairment losses recognised for goodwil REEMERZAEEE 36,795 -
Impairment losses recognised for development costs for AL R B FRE R ARFTTER
systems and networks ZREEE 10,800 142,000
Impairment losses recognised for deposits and prepaid iR BRI FEKAER
development costs ZREEE = 126,474
Operating cash flows before movements in working capital @& ¢ B BAT 2 L LR S 535,848 825,493
Decrease (increase) in inventories FEZRL(Em) 186,956 (183,012)
Decrease (increase) in trade and other receivables FEWE 5 R E b BRFR 2R A (38 0) 173,616 (739,891)
Increase in trade and other payables ERB S REMBERZIEMm 30,323 8,630
Increase (decrease) in warranty provision REREZEMORD) 9 (31)
Net cash generated from (used in) operations BEEL (AR RS T8 926,752 (88,811)
Taxation (paid) refunded (B BEHE (2,205) 1
Net cash from (used in) operating activities REEBMEB () RS FE 924,547 (88,810)
Cash flows from investing activities BEFSZAST
Deposits and prepayment (paid) refunded in respect of ERRGRBERERAZ(BR)
development costs for systems and networks BRES RIENTE (996,762) 86,970
Additions to property, plant and equipment NEWE - BE REE (11,547) (9,797)
Additions to systems and networks RERGRBIE (1,038) -
Interest received BHRRE 3,899 5,000
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment HEME BENMRERSZTIE 6 -
Net cash (used in) from investing activities BEEE () MBS FE (1,005,442) 82,173
Cash flows from financing activities BMETH RS
Proceeds from issue of shares BITRIDFTG 2 5B 227,663 -
Repayment of bank loans BERITER (16,539) (8,314)
Payment for transaction costs attributable to rights issue EEMREER KA (4,220) -
Interest paid BAFIE (1,023) (619)
Dividends paid EfIERE = (15,377)
New bank loans raised FEIRITER = 12,500
Net from (used in) financing activities BB EERE(FE) 2BHE 58 205,881 (11,806)
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents RekReSB2EMORD)FE 124,986 (18,443)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year FBRENREEH 66,648 84,193
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes EXgE s 8 4,773 898
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year FRAGRREEHE 196,407 66,648
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GENERAL

Kantone Holdings Limited (the “Company”) is incorporated
in the Cayman Islands as an exempted company with
limited liability under the Companies Law (Revised) Chapter
22 of the Cayman Islands and its shares are listed on the
Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Exchange”). Its ultimate and immediate holding
company is Champion Technology Holdings Limited
(“Champion”), a company which was originally incorporated
in the Cayman Islands but subsequently re-domiciled to
Bermuda, and its shares are also listed on the Main Board
of the Exchange. The addresses of the registered office and
principal place of business of the Company are disclosed in
the Corporate Information section of the annual report.

The consolidated financial statements are presented
in Hong Kong dollar because the Company is a public
company with its shares listed on the Main Board of the
Exchange. The functional currency of the Company is
United States dollar.

The Company is an investment holding company. The
principal activities of its subsidiaries are set out in note 31.

ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs")

The Group has applied, for the first time in the current year,
the following new and revised HKFRSs issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”)
and a new interpretation.

Amendments to HKFRSs Annual improvements to HKFRSs
2010-2012 cycle
Amendments to HKFRSs Annual improvements to HKFRSs

2011-2013 cycle

Amendments to Hong Kong  Defined benefit plans: Employee

Accounting Standard contributions
(“HKAS”) 19
Amendments to HKFRS 10, Investment entities
HKFRS 12 and HKAS 27
Amendments to HKAS 32 Offsetting financial assets and financial
liabilities
Amendments to HKAS 36 Recoverable amount disclosures for
non-financial assets
Amendments to HKAS 39 Novation of derivatives and continuation
of hedge accounting
HK (IFRIC*) — INT 21 Levies

*

IFRIC represents the IFRS Interpretations Committee.

LR
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£ o ARAEMP R R T RSB 2
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ERARB B —HRNRZXZAERLETZR
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ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG 2. RWHEIRKBIBEEBNKERE
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS ZA([EBHBEHREEA ] »
(“HKFRSS") - continued

The application of the amendments to HKFRSs and a new RAEE  IRAEBTBRELEBNESTAN —

interpretation in the current year has had no material impact A RO AEEAFERBEFETHE

on the Group’s financial performance and positions for the BERANE, HZERENBHRERS 2 WE
current and prior years and/or on the disclosures set out in WHEBAZE -

these consolidated financial statements.

The Group has not early applied the following new and AEBWERFEAUTERMGEMRERZ

revised standards, amendments and interpretation that HET RS ETHER| « (B AN REE o

have been issued but are not yet effective.

HKFRS 9 Financial instruments! BRI RS AR EN SRTA

HKFRS 14 Regulatory deferral accounts? BRISHREERE 145 EEETKRE?

HKFRS 15 Revenue from contracts with customers? BB B IRE £ 155 BHAS

Amendments to HKFRS 11 Accounting for acquisitions of interests ERMEHRELRFE115 WBELBERER

in joint operations* B RS
Amendments to HKAS 16 Clarification of acceptable methods of EnetELE16% K& EETEANZIER
and HKAS 38 depreciation and amortisation* EE et ER|F385 BHe
BEIA
Amendments to HKAS 16 Agriculture: Bearer plants* EHEHERE165E R B AEGEDH
and HKAS 41 B EEERE 415
B

Amendments to HKAS 27 Equity method in separate financial EESHER|E275% B BRI Y RS

statements* BAIA

Amendments to HKFRS 10 Sale or contribution of assets between EAIRREER REEEEBE DT

and HKAS 28 an investor and its associate or joint F10HEREB ST BELEZRNEE
venture AR B285RIERT AN HESEE

Amendment to HKAS 1 Disclosure initiative* En e EE15 BERTE

BRI
Amendments to HKFRS 10, Investment entities: Applying the ERMBREERFE105 - KEEE: ERGA
HKFRS 12 and HKAS 28 consolidation exception4 EH TSR AR LN
SR RAEBGE
EPLEH N
Amendments to HKFRSs Annual improvements to HKFRSs BB TR R LR EETA —E——FERC
2012-2014 cycle* iﬂﬂﬂZ%ﬁéﬁﬂ%
R F E U

1 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 1 RZF—NF—A—BxUNERRZFEH
2018, with earlier application permitted. R - RFHRREA -

2 Effective for first annual HKFRS financial statements 2 RZE—ARF—A BB ZEEEEH
beginning on or after 1 January 2016, with earlier application BREERFEMERERLRER  RFIRE
permitted. R o

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 3 REZT—+tF— A —HHAERBZFER
2017, with earlier application permitted. LR - R REHA -

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 4 RZZ—A"F—A—BUERRKRZFEH

2016, with earlier application permitted. R - RFHRREA -
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2. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG

KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSS") - continued
HKFRS 9 “Financial instruments”
A final version of HKFRS 9 (that includes classification and
measurement of financial assets and financial liabilities,
impairment and general hedge accounting) was issued in
2014.

Key requirements of HKFRS 9 are described below:

o All recognised financial assets that are within the
scope of HKAS 39 “Financial instruments: Recognition
and measurement” are subsequently measured at
amortised cost or fair value. Debt investments that
are held within a business model whose objective is
to collect the contractual cash flows, and that have
contractual cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal outstanding
are generally measured at amortised cost at the end
of subsequent accounting periods. All other debt
investments and equity investments are measured at
their fair value at the end of subsequent accounting
periods.

° An expected loss model (rather than an incurred loss
model) has been adopted by HKFRS 9.

o The new general hedge accounting requirements
retain the three types of hedge accounting. However,
greater flexibility has been introduced to the types
of transactions eligible for hedge accounting,
specifically broadening the types of instruments that
qualify for hedging instruments and the types of risk
components of non-financial items that are eligible for
hedge accounting.

The directors of the Company will assess the impact of
the application of HKFRS 9. For the moment, it is not
practicable to provide a reasonable estimate of the effect
of the application of HKFRS 9 until the Group performs a
detailed review.

Ay}
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ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSS”) - continued

HKFRS 15 “Revenue from contracts with
customers”

In July 2014, HKFRS 15 was issued which establishes a
single comprehensive model for entities to use in accounting
for revenue arising from contracts with customers. HKFRS
15 will supersede the current revenue recognition guidance
including HKAS 18 “Revenue”, HKAS 11 “Construction
contracts” and the related interpretations when it becomes
effective.

The core principle of HKFRS 15 is that an entity should
recognise revenue to depict the transfer of promised goods
or services to customers in an amount that reflects the
consideration to which the entity expects to be entitled
in exchange for those goods or services. Specifically,
the standard introduces a 5-step approach to revenue
recognition:

° Step 1:  Identify the contract(s) with a customer

o Step 2:  Identify the performance obligations in the
contract

° Step 38:  Determine the transaction price

o Step 4:  Allocate the transaction price to the
performance obligations in the contract

° Step 5:  Recognise revenue when (or as) the entity

satisfies a performance obligation

Under HKFRS 15, an entity recognises revenue when (or
as) a performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when control of
the goods or services underlying the particular performance
obligation is transferred to the customer. Far more
prescriptive guidance has been added in HKFRS 15 to deal
with specific scenarios. Furthermore, extensive disclosures
are required by HKFRS 15.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the HKFRS
15 may have significant impact on amounts reported in
the consolidated financial statements. However, it is not
practicable to provide a reasonable estimate of the effect of
HKFRS 15 until the Group performs a detailed review.

The directors of the Company do not anticipate that the
application of the other new and revised HKFRSs will have
a material impact on the Group’s consolidated financial
statements.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. In
addition, the consolidated financial statements include
applicable disclosures required by the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on the Exchange (the “Listing Rules”)
and by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
on the historical cost basis. Historical cost is generally
based on the fair value of the consideration given in
exchange for goods.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an
asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date,
regardless of whether that price is directly observable or
estimated using another valuation technique. In estimating
the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group takes into
account the characteristics of the asset or liability if market
participants would take those characteristics into account
when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date.
Fair value for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in
these consolidated financial statements is determined on
such a basis, except for share-based payment transactions
that are within the scope of HKFRS 2, leasing transactions
that are within the scope of HKAS 17, and measurements
that have some similarities to fair value but are not fair
value, such as net realisable value in HKAS 2 or value in use
in HKAS 36.

The principal accounting policies are set out below.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the
financial statements of the Company and entities controlled
by the Company and its subsidiaries. Control is achieved
when the Company:

3.
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o is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its o 2B E RN ERMIES R aEE

involvement with the investee; and
° has the ability to use its power to affect its retumns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an
investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there are
changes to one or more of the three elements of control
listed above.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

— continued

Basis of consolidation - continued

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group
obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when the
Group loses control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income
and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of
during the year are included in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income from the
date the Group gains control until the date when the Group
ceases to control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive income
are attributed to the owners of the Company and to the
non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive income of
subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the Company
and to the non-controlling interests even if this results in the
non-controlling interests having a deficit balance.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies
in line with those used by other members of the Group.

All intra-group transactions, balances, income and
expenses are eliminated in full on consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are presented
separately from the Group’s equity therein.

Allocation of total comprehensive income to non-
controlling interests

Total comprehensive income and expense of a subsidiary
is attributed to the owners of the Company and to the non-
controlling interests even if this results in the non-controlling
interests having a deficit balance.

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in
existing subsidiaries

Changes in the Group’s ownership interest in existing
subsidiaries that do not result in the Group losing control
over the subsidiary are accounted for as equity transactions.
The carrying amounts of the Group’s interests and the non-
controlling interests are adjusted to reflect the changes
in their relative interests in the subsidiary. Any difference
between the amount by which the non-controlling interests
are adjusted and the fair value of the consideration paid or
received is recognised directly in equity and attributed to
owners of the Company.

3.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

— continued

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is carried
at cost less any accumulated impairment losses, if any, and
is presented separately in the consolidated statement of
financial position.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill arising
from an acquisition is allocated to each of the relevant
cash-generating units, or groups of cash-generating
units, that are expected to benefit from the synergies of
the acquisition. A cash-generating unit to which goodwill
has been allocated is tested for impairment annually,
and whenever there is an indication that the unit may be
impaired. For goodwill arising on an acquisition in a financial
year, the cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been
allocated is tested for impairment before the end of that
financial year. When the recoverable amount of the cash-
generating unit is less than the carrying amount of the unit,
the impairment loss is allocated to reduce the carrying
amount of any goodwill allocated to the unit first, and then
to the other assets of the unit pro rata on the basis of the
carrying amount of each asset in the unit. Any impairment
loss for goodwill is recognised directly in profit or loss. An
impairment loss for goodwill is not reversed in subsequent
periods.

On disposal of the relevant cash-generating units, the
attributable amount of goodwill capitalised is included in the
determination of the amount of profit or loss on disposal.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable and represents amounts receivable
for goods sold and services provided in the normal course
of business, net of discounts and sales related taxes.

Revenue from sales of goods are recognised when goods
are delivered and title has passed, at which time all the
following conditions are satisfied:

° the Group has transferred to the buyer the significant
risks and rewards of ownership of the goods;

° the Group retains neither continuing managerial
involvement to the degree usually associated with
ownership nor effective control over the goods sold;

° the amount of revenue can be measured reliably;

o it is probable that the economic benefits associated
with the transaction will flow to the Group; and

° the costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of the
transaction can be measured reliably.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

— continued

Revenue recognition — continued

Income from sales of systems and related softwares are
recognised when the relevant systems and softwares are
delivered and title has passed.

Service income relating to licensing and customisation is
recognised when services are rendered.

Rental income, including rental invoiced in advance from
assets under operating leases, is recognised on a straight-
line basis over the relevant lease term.

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when
it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the
Group and the amount of income can be measured reliably.
Interest income from a financial asset is accrued on a
time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and
at the effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate
that exactly discounts the estimated future cash receipts
through the expected life of the financial asset to that asset’s
net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including land and buildings
held for use in the production or supply of goods or
services, or for administrative purposes are stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position at cost less
subsequent accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses.

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost of items of
property, plant and equipment less their residual values over
their estimated useful lives, using the straight-line method,
at the following rates per annum:

Freehold land Nil

Buildings on freehold land 50 years

Leasehold land and buildings QOver the shorter of the remaining
unexpired terms of the relevant
leases or 50 years

Plant and machinery and 10% — 50%

communications networks

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset.
Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an
item of property, plant and equipment is determined as the
difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

— continued

Leasehold land and building

When a lease includes both land and building elements,
the Group assesses the classification of each element as
a finance or an operating lease separately based on the
assessment as to whether substantially all the risks and
rewards incidental to ownership of each element have
been transferred to the Group, unless it is clear that both
elements are operating leases, in which case the entire
lease is classified as an operating lease. Specifically, the
minimum lease payments (including any lump-sum upfront
payments) are allocated between the land and the building
elements in proportion to the relative fair values of the
leasehold interests in the land element and building element
of the lease at the inception of the lease.

To the extent the allocation of the lease payments can be
made reliably, interest in leasehold land that is accounted
for as an operating lease is presented as “prepaid lease
payments” in the consolidated statement of financial
position and is released over the lease term on a straight-
line basis. When the lease payments cannot be allocated
reliably between the land and building elements, the
entire lease is generally classified as a finance lease and
accounted for as property, plant and equipment.

Impairment (other than goodwill, development
costs for systems and networks and financial
assets)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews
the carrying amounts of its assets to determine whether
there is any indication that those assets have suffered
an impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the
recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to
determine the extent of the impairment loss, if any. When
it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of
an individual asset, the Group estimates the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit to which the asset
belongs. When a reasonable and consistent basis of
allocation can be identified, corporate assets are also
allocated to individual cash-generating units, or otherwise
they are allocated to the smallest group of cash-generating
units for which a reasonable and consistent allocation basis
can be identified.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs
of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the asset for which the estimates of future
cash flows have not been adjusted. If the recoverable
amount of an asset (or a cash-generating unit) is estimated
to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount
of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is reduced to its
recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

— continued

Impairment (other than goodwill, development
costs for systems and networks and financial
assets) - continued

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset is increased to the revised
estimate of its recoverable amount, so that the increased
carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that
would have been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset in prior years. A reversal of an
impairment loss is recognised as income immediately.

Leases

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms
of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as
operating leases.

The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in
profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the
relevant lease. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating
and arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying
amount of the leased asset and recognised as an expense
on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

The Group as lessee
Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense
on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease.

Deposits and prepaid development costs and
development costs for systems and networks
Deposits and prepaid development costs represent the
development costs for systems and networks projects
under construction by the system developers. Deposits and
prepaid development costs are transferred to development
costs for systems and networks when it is implemented for
its intended use, and are stated at cost less subsequent
accumulated impairment losses.

Development costs are recognised only if all of the following
have been demonstrated:

- the technical feasibility of completing the asset so
that it will be available for use or sale;

- the intention to complete the asset and use or sell it;

- the ability to use or sell the asset;

- how the asset will generate probable future economic
benefits. Among other things, the entity can
demonstrate the existence of a market for the output
of the asset or the asset itself or, if it is to be used
internally, the usefulness of the asset;
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

— continued

Deposits and prepaid development costs and

development costs for systems and networks

— continued

- the availability of adequate technical, financial and
other resources to complete the development and to
use or sell the asset; and

- the ability to measure reliably the expenditure
attributable to the asset during its development.

Development costs that do not fulfill the above conditions
are recognised as expenses in the period in which it is
incurred.

Development costs for systems and networks, which
are implemented for its intended use, are stated at cost
less subsequent accumulated amortisation and any
accumulated impairment losses. The amortisation is
calculated based on straight-line basis over their estimated
useful lives, subject to a maximum of five years.

Where the recoverable amount of deposits and prepaid
development costs and development costs for systems
and networks has declined below their carrying amount,
the carrying amount is reduced to reflect the decline in
value. Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses,
the carrying amount of the asset is increased to the revised
estimate of its recoverable amount, so that the increased
carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that
would have been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset in prior years. A reversal of an
impairment loss is recognised as income immediately.

An item of deposits and prepaid development costs
and development costs for systems and networks is
derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic
benefits are expected to arise from the continued use of
the asset. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of
the asset (calculated as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the item) is
included in profit or loss in the period in which the item is
derecognised.

Research expenditures
Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an
expense in the period in which it is incurred.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

— continued

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position when a group
entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured
at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable
to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial
liabilities (other than financial assets and financial liabilities
at fair value through profit or loss) are added to or deducted
from the fair value of the financial assets or financial
liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition.

Financial assets

The Group’s financial assets are classified as loans and
receivables. The accounting policies adopted in respect of
financial assets are set out below.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial asset and of allocating
interest income over the relevant period. The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash receipts (including all fees and points paid or
received that form an integral part of the effective interest
rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the financial asset, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period to the net carrying amount on
initial recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest basis
for debt instruments.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in
an active market. Subsequent to initial recognition, loans
and receivables (including trade and other receivables,
deposits, bank balances and cash) are carried at amortised
cost using the effective interest method, less any identified
impairment losses (see accounting policy on impairment of
financial assets below).
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

— continued

Financial instruments - continued

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets are assessed for indicators of impairment
at the end of the reporting period. Financial assets are
considered to be impaired where there is objective evidence
that, as a result of one or more events that occurred after
the initial recognition of the financial asset, the estimated
future cash flows of the financial assets have been affected.

Obijective evidence of impairment could include:

. significant financial difficulty of the issuer or
counterparty; or

o default or delinquency in interest or principal
payments; or

° it becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or financial re-organisation.

For certain categories of financial assets, such as trade
receivables, assets that are assessed not to be impaired
individually are, in addition, assessed for impairment on
a collective basis. Objective evidence of impairment for
a portfolio of receivables could include the Group’s past
experience of collecting payments and an increase in
the number of delayed payments in the portfolio past the
average credit period.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount
of the impairment loss recognised is the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the
estimated future cash flows discounted at the financial
assets original effective interest rate.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by
the impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the
exception of trade receivables, where carrying amount
is reduced through the use of an allowance account.
Changes in the carrying amount of the allowance account
are recognised in profit or loss. When a trade receivable
is considered uncollectible, it is written off against the
allowance account.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in
a subsequent period, the amount of impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be related objectively
to an event occurring after the impairment losses was
recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss is
reversed through profit or loss to the extent that the carrying
amount of the asset at the date the impairment is reversed
does not exceed what the amortised cost would have been
had the impairment not been recognised.

FESHBEK-#

ERMITHE-#&

SHBEZRE
SREESNRE PR T EES N RE
DR - EERBBEBERSMEE AR
e BEVRHEREREEY —TALSES
HMZHFER  SREENBRAEER
{Eo

BEZEBERER

o BUUAURSHTHREBAVKINE :
54

o REEANSEEREEFSHAS : X
o [ERARAREHBRERVEEME -

HETEREELRRN(MEKESERFOME -
ZERH AR MEERNREZEE - & — &
SAERRER Y - BERFRESHRREZ
EBE RN AN EEREUGERMEBT
BEEHZAR KRR FURBUEM -

SARBER AT SRMEEN 5 - REBE
SRR EEZ REERIZSREERERT
KRR R ARACR SR 2 B 2 ZRHR -

BIEWE SR TAESBEE ZREED
HEREERERE - MEKE RN ZER
EEEBEARELNR - BERAZREE
HPPNEETHER - EREEZEFRERT
AU EIEE - AR RS A o

IR AT EZEREEM S @ MREES
BEBRHEREMEYL  MAEBRSERE LM
ERREERREEZEMHER - QLA
RZBEBRERERD TAED - EZEE
WREREDE B 2 REENMSBEBE N RE
REZIRREZ B -



SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

— continued

Financial instruments - continued

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by a
group entity are classified as either financial liabilities or as
equity in accordance with the substance of the contractual
arrangements entered into and the definitions of a financial
liability and an equity instrument.

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a
residual interest in the assets of the Group after deducting
all of its liabilities. The accounting policies in respect of
financial liabilities and equity instruments are set out below.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest
expense over the relevant period. The effective interest
rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash
payments through the expected life of the financial liability,
or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying
amount on initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest
basis.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities including trade and other payables and
bank borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised
cost, using the effective interest method.

Equity instruments
Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded at
the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Derecognition

The Group derecognised financial assets only when the
contractual rights to receive cash flows from the assets
expire or, when it transfers the financial assets and
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the
assets.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
sum of the consideration received and receivable and the
cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in other
comprehensive income is recognised in profit or loss.

The Group derecognised a financial liability when, and only
when, the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or
expires. The difference between the carrying amount of the
financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid or
payable is recognised in profit or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

— continued

Provision

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
obligation as a result of a past event, and it is probable
that the Group will be required to settle that obligation
and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the
obligation. Provisions are measured at the best estimate of
the consideration required to settle the present obligation
at the end of the reporting period, taking into account the
risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation. Where
a provision is measured using the cash flows estimated
to settle the present obligation, its carrying amount is the
present value of those cash flows (where the effect is
material).

Inventories
Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is calculated using the first-in, first-out method.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time
to get ready for their intended use or sale, are added to
the cost of those assets until such time as the assets are
substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in
the period in which they are incurred.

Taxation
Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for
the year. Taxable profit differs from ’profit before taxation’
as reported in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income because it excludes
items of income or expense that are taxable or deductible
in other years and it further excludes items that are never
taxable and deductible. The Group’s liability for current
tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
consolidated financial statements and the corresponding
tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit.
Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable
temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are generally
recognised for all deductible temporary differences to the
extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available
against which those deductible temporary differences can
be utilised. Such assets and liabilities are not recognised if
the temporary difference arises from goodwill or from the
initial recognition (other than in a business combination)
of other assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects
neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

— continued

Taxation — continued

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries,
except where the Group is able to control the reversal of the
temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred
tax assets arising from deductible temporary differences
associated with such investments are only recognised to
the extent that it is probable that there will be sufficient
taxable profits against which to utilise the benefits of the
temporary differences and they are expected to reverse in
the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at
the end of the reporting period and reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will
be available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply in the period in which the
liability is settled or the asset realised, based on tax rate (and
tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted
by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the
manner in which the Group expects, at the end of the
reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount
of its assets and liabilities. Current and deferred tax is
recognised in profit or loss, except when it relates to items
that are recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity, in which case, the current and deferred
tax are also recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity respectively.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual
group entity, transactions in currencies other than the
functional currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are
recorded in its functional currency (i.e. the currency of the
primary economic environment in which the entity operates)
at the rates of exchanges prevailing on the dates of the
transactions. At the end of the reporting period, monetary
items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated
at the rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items
that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign
currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary
items, and on the retranslation of monetary items, are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

— continued

Foreign currencies — continued

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the group entities
are translated into the presentation currency of the Group
(i.e. Hong Kong dollars) at the rate of exchange prevailing
at the end of the reporting period, and their income and
expenses are translated at the average exchange rates for
the year, unless exchange rates fluctuate significantly during
the period, in which case, the exchange rates prevailing at
the dates of transactions are used. Exchange differences
arising, if any, are recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in equity (the translation reserve).
Exchange differences are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which the foreign operation is disposed of.

Retirement benefit scheme

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit plans
are recognised as an expense when employees have
rendered service entitling them to contributions.

For the Group’s defined benefit retirement benefit plans, the
cost of providing benefits is determined using the projected
unit credit method, with actuarial valuation being carried
out every three years and updated annually at the end of
the reporting period. Remeasurement, comprising actuarial
gains and losses and the return on plan assets (excluding
interest), is reflected immediately in the consolidated
statement of financial position with a charge or credit
recognised in other comprehensive income in the period
in which they occur. Remeasurement recognised in other
comprehensive income is reflected immediately in retained
earnings and will not be reclassified to profit or loss. Past
service cost is recognised in profit or loss in the period of
a plan amendment. Net interest is calculated by applying
the discount rate at the beginning of the period to the net
defined benefit liability or asset. Defined benefit costs are
categorised as follows:

o service cost (including current service cost and past

service cost);
° net interest expense or income; and
o remeasurement.

The Group presents the first two components of defined
benefit costs in profit or loss in the line item general and
administrative expenses.

The retirement benefit obligation recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position represents
the actual deficit or surplus in the Group’s defined benefit
plans. Any surplus resulting from this calculation is limited
to the present value of any economic benefits available in
the form of refunds from the plans or reduction in future
contributions to the plans.
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KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

The following are the key assumptions concerning the
future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at
the end of the reporting period, that have a significant risk
of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities within the next financial year.

Development costs for systems and networks and
deposits and prepaid development costs

(1)

@

Estimated useful life

The estimated useful life of the assets reflects the
directors’ estimate of the periods that the Group
intends to derive future economic benefits from the
use of the development. Where the actual useful life
is less than expected, a material impairment loss may
arise.

Estimated impairment

Determining whether development costs for systems
and networks, and deposits and prepaid development
costs are impaired requires an estimation of the value
in use on a project-by-project basis. The value in use
calculation requires the Group to estimate the future
cash flow expected to arise from the continuing use
of the assets or since successful launch of technology
projects and a suitable discount rate in order to
calculate the present value. The Group estimates its
cash flow projection covering a period of up to five-
year period based on financial budgets approved by
management and a discount rate of ranging from
10% to 25% (2014: 10% to 25%) per annum.

The directors also consider the revenue and
operating costs of the technology projects in the
coming years will be in line with the Group’s budgets,
taking into account of current economical factors.
In the event that the technology projects are not
expected to be well received by the market, these
deposits and prepaid development costs may not
be fully recovered and impairment loss may arise.
In the event that the developers fail to perform
their obligations to develop the technologies as
required, the Group will estimate the future cash
flows from recovering the deposits and prepaid
development costs from developers. As at 30 June
2015, the carrying amounts of development costs
for systems and networks and deposits and prepaid
development costs were HK$1,150,367,000 (2014:
HK$1,062,346,000) and HK$432,510,000 (2014:
nil) respectively. Impairment loss on development
costs for systems and networks and deposits
and prepaid development costs amounting to
HK$10,800,000 (2014: HK$142,000,000) and nil
(2014: HK$126,474,000) have been recognised
respectively with details set out in notes 14 and 16.
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KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION

UNCERTAINTY - continued

Development costs for systems and networks and
deposits and prepaid development costs

— continued

@

&

Estimated impairment — continued

As at 30 June 2015, the aged analysis of the deposits
and prepaid development costs represented balance
less than one year of HK$432,510,000 (2014: nil).

As at 30 June 2015, the deposits paid to the largest
developer and the deposits paid for the largest
project under development accounted for 71% (2014
nil) and 100% (2014: nil) of the total deposits and
prepaid development costs respectively.

In-Car Telematics Solution project

Included in the Group’s development costs for
systems and networks is an investment in the In-
Car Telematics Solution project with a carrying value
of HK$646,011,000 (2014: HK$683,838,000). The
project aims to install in-car telematics solutions
to prevent drunk driving. The management initially
expected the project to be gradually launched into
the market. However, this has not happened, it is the
management’s opinion that due to a slowdown in
business growth in general for the auto industry and
a longer than expected time for market participants
such as car manufacturers, and governments, to
embrace such telematics have caused the delay in
launch of the product into the market. Also, during
the year ended 30 June 2015, the Group renewed
the license agreements with certain of its agents to
promote and further enhance the marketability of
these products in various jurisdictions. The license
terms of these agreements will end on 30 November
2016.

Due to further delay in launching of this project as
a result of poor market condition, the Group has
revised certain assumptions, including the expected
sales quantity and price, used for developing its
budget and estimated cash flows for the In-Car
Telematics Solution project. The major assumptions
are that the Group will be able to renew these license
agreements with its agents for a period of 2 years
and that the products will be launched into market
thereafter. The estimated cash flows forecasts from
the project have been covering for a period of 3 to 4
years (2014: 3 to 4 years) and discount rate of 25%
(2014: 25%).
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KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY - continued

Development costs for systems and networks and
deposits and prepaid development costs

— continued

(3)  In-Car Telematics Solution project — continued

As a result of the above assumptions, the Group
has recognised an impairment loss in the In-Car
Telematics Solution project of HK$10,800,000 (2014:
HK$142,000,000). The Group will keep the economic
situation and the business of the Group under
continuing review. Management is continuing its
effort with relevant governments for adoption of these
products and to renew these license agreements
with agents. Management is cautiously optimistic
of the adoption of these telematics by relevant
governments and the outcome of the renewal of
license agreements. In the event that the adoption is
not progressing well or that the agreements are not
renewed, further impairment loss may arise.

Recoverability of advance to suppliers

As at 30 June 2015, the Group had advance to suppliers
of HK$1,495,091,000 (2014: HK$1,495,057,000). The
advance was purchase deposits paid to suppliers of system
products and cultural products.

As at 30 June 2015, the advance paid to the largest
supplier accounted for 42% (2014: 43%) of the total
advance to suppliers.

The directors of the Company consider the advance paid
to suppliers can be recovered from realisation through
subsequent sales of related products. In the event that the
relevant products are not as well received by the market
as anticipated and no subsequent sales are realised, the
suppliers may not be able to refund in full and impairment
loss may arise.

Estimated impairment of trade receivables

When there is objective evidence of impairment loss, the
Group takes into consideration the estimation of future
cash flows. The amount of impairment loss is measured
as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and
the present value of estimated future cash flows (excluding
future credit losses that have not been incurred) discounted
at the financial asset’s original effective interest rate (i.e. the
effective interest rate computed at initial recognition). Where
the actual future cash flows are less than expected, a
material impairment loss may arise. As at 30 June 2015, the
carrying amount of trade receivables was HK$329,609,000
(2014: HK$484,222,000).
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KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY - continued

Estimated impairment of goodwill

Determining whether goodwill is impaired requires an
estimation of the value in use of the cash-generating unit
to which goodwill has been allocated. The value in use
calculation requires the Group to estimate the future cash
flows expected to arise from the cash-generating unit and
a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present
value. Where the actual future cash flows are less than
expected, a material impairment loss may arise. As at 30
June 2015, the carrying amount of goodwill was nil (2014:
HK$36,795,000). Impairment loss of HK$36,795,000 has
been recognised during the year ended 30 June 2015 after
management’s assessment on the cash generating unit
(“CGU”) related to the provision of e-lottery services under
the systems sales and licensing segment with details set
out in note 15.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
Categories of financial instruments
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2015 2014
—E-RF —E-mF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTHET FHT
Financial assets SREE
Loans and receivables B R EWERR
(including deposits, bank balances and cash)  (B#EEF - RITEBRRES) 2,046,819 2,089,653
Financial liabilities THRAE
Amortised cost TN 107,561 71,107

Financial risk management objectives and policies
The Group’s major financial instruments include trade and
other receivables, deposits, bank balances and cash, trade
and other payables and bank borrowings. Details of these
financial instruments are disclosed in respective notes. The
risks associated with these financial instruments and the
policies on how to mitigate these risks are set out below.
The management manages and monitors these exposures
to ensure appropriate measures are implemented on a
timely and effective manner.

Credit risk

As at 30 June 2015, the Group’s maximum exposure to
credit risk which will cause a financial loss to the Group due
to failure to discharge an obligation by the counterparties
is arising from the carrying amount of the respective
recognised financial assets as stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position.
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued
Financial risk management objectives and policies
— continued

Credit risk — continued

In order to minimise the credit risk in relation to trade
receivables, the management of the Group will only allow
customers with good credit history to pay on credit. In
addition, the management reviews the recoverable amount
of each individual trade debt at the end of the reporting
period, taking into account of future discounted cash
flows, to ensure that adequate impairment losses are made
for irrecoverable amounts. In this regard, the directors
of the Company consider that the Group’s credit risk is
significantly reduced.

The credit risk on trade receivables is concentrated on
a few distributors. Receivables from top five distributors
represented approximately 94% (2014: 93%) of trade
receivables in system sales and licensing at the end of the
reporting period. Also, advances to suppliers included in
other receivables are all concentrated on a few suppliers.
The management considers that there are no significant
credit risks on the distributors and suppliers due to the long
and good credit history of these counter parties.

As at 30 June 2015, the Group had approximately
HK$4,027,000 (2014: nil) of deposits maintained in a
financial institution that is not regulated in Hong Kong. This
financial institution does not have credit rating assigned by
credit rating agencies. The management considers there
are no significant credit risks due to the long and good
credit history with this financial institution. The credit risk
on other liquid funds is limited because the counterparties
are banks with high credit ratings assigned by international
credit-rating agencies.

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group monitors
and maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed
adequate by the management to finance the Group’s
operations and mitigate the effects of fluctuations in
cash flows. The management monitors the utilisation of
borrowings and the compliance of loan covenants.

The following table details the Group’s remaining
contractual maturity for its financial liabilities based on
the agreed repayment terms. The table has been drawn
up based on the undiscounted cash flows of financial
liabilities based on the earliest date on which the Group
can be required to pay. Specifically, bank borrowings
with a repayment on demand clause are included in the
earliest time band regardless of the probability of the banks
choosing to exercise their rights. The maturity dates for
other non-derivative financial liabilities are based on the
agreed repayment dates. The table includes both interest
and principal cash flows.
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5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued 5. @@THR &
Financial risk management objectives and policies R EEEERKE &
— continued
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Liquidity risk — continued

To the extent that interest flows are floating rate, the
undiscounted amount of interest payment is estimated
based on the interest rate at the end of the reporting period.

Carrying

Effective  On demand Total  amount at
interest or less than 7-12 2-5 undiscounted 30 June
rates 6 months months years cash flows 2015
R®

ZEA AEH —B-IF
FHR Bl AA=TA
67 TE128A 122 2B5F a8 ZBAE
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
TER TER AR TER TER TiEn

2015 “E-1f
Trade and other payables B 5 R EMmER 94,128 - - - 94,128 94,128
Bank borrowings BITESE 2.8 2,112 2,318 245 8,703 13,978 13,433
96,840 2,318 245 8,703 108,106 107,561
Carrying
Effective  On demand Total  amount at
interest  or less than 7-12 2-5  undiscounted 30 June
rates 6 months months years  cash flows 2014
igihil
HOR ‘
oA 7Z12[A 120% 2B5E gE 2K
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THL TAL BT BT T THL
2014 “E-mE
Trade and other payables RS REMER - 39,476 - - - 39,476 39,476
Bank borrowings FITEE 3.0 15,240 2,716 4,951 10,150 33,057 31,631

54,716 2,716 4,951 10,150 72,533 71,107

The amounts included above for variable interest rate i) B 2 B B 75 B Ok o5 H e A I R TE 2 7
instruments for non-derivative financial liabilities are subject EfhET - LARBIEITESRABBIEENET
to change if changes in variable interest rates differ to those BEFr&tyl e @ G IR g o

estimates of interest rates determined at the end of the

reporting period.

Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to cash flow interest rate risk in
relation to variable-rate bank deposits, bank balances
and bank borrowings. The Group does not enter into any
arrangement to hedge cash flow interest rate risk. However,
the management monitors interest rate exposure and will
consider hedging significant interest rate risk should the
need arises.

The Group cash flow interest rate risk is mainly
concentrated on the fluctuation of sterling base rates arising
from the Group’s Pound Sterlings denominated borrowings.
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued
Financial risk management objectives and policies
— continued

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined based
on the exposure to interest rates for variable-rate deposits,
bank balances and bank borrowings at the end of the
reporting period. The analysis is prepared assuming that
the amount of balances outstanding at the end of the
reporting period was outstanding for the whole year. A 10
basis points (2014: 10 basis points) increase or decrease
represents management’s assessment of the reasonably
possible change in interest rates.

If interest rates had been 10 basis points (2014: 10 basis
points) higher or lower and all other variables were held
constant, the Group’s profit for the year ended 30 June
2015 would increase or decrease by approximately
HK$183,000 (2014: increase or decrease by HK$36,000).

Foreign currency risk

Foreign currency risk refers to the risk that movement
in foreign currency exchange rate which will affect the
Group’s financial results and its cash flows. Certain trade
receivables and deposits and bank balances of the Group
and intra-group current accounts are denominated in
foreign currencies. The Group does not engage in any
foreign currency hedging instruments. It is the Group’s
policy to manage foreign exchange risk through matching
foreign currency income with expense, and where exposure
to foreign exchange is anticipated, appropriate hedging
instruments will be used.

Several subsidiaries of the Company have foreign currency
denominated monetary assets and liabilities, which expose
the Group to foreign currency risk.

The carrying amounts of the group entities’ foreign currency
denominated monetary assets and monetary liabilities
(including intra-group current accounts) at the reporting
date are as follows:

HK$°000
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued
Financial risk management objectives and policies
— continued

Sensitivity analysis

The group entities are mainly exposed to foreign currency
risk in Euro, Pound Sterling and United States dollar. Under
the pegged exchange rate system, the financial exposure
on exchange rate fluctuation between Hong Kong dollar
and United States dollar is considered insignificant by the
directors and therefore no sensitivity analysis has been
prepared.

The following table details the group entities’ sensitivity
to a 5% (2014: 5%) increase and decrease in Euro and
Pound Sterling against each group entity’s functional
currency. 5% (2014: 5%) is the sensitivity rate used when
reporting foreign currency risk internally to key management
personnel and represents management’s assessment of
the reasonably possible change in foreign exchange rates.
The sensitivity analysis includes only outstanding foreign
currency denominated monetary items and adjusts their
translation at the year end for a 5% (2014: 5%) change in
foreign currency rates. A positive number below indicates
an increase in profit before taxation where Euro and Pound
Sterling strengthen 5% (2014: 5%) against each group
entity’s functional currency. For a 5% (2014: 5%) weakening
of Euro and Pound Sterling against each group entity’s
functional currency, there would be an equal and opposite
impact on the profit.

eI A =
R EEEEREE &

BURUE DT
SEERIEAEZINERBIREET - RE
KT - EHBERKGIT - EERAETHE
KLERRE 2 MEREARGR - Fibe I Eim
FREED

TRAMGAEEETEHRUC R NE L SEE
BRINEERZEXR AR TASN(ZZE—N
F  5%) 7 BURE - 5%(ZZF—WE : 5%) )
BEEERNRTEEIE A B REINE @ b
FIRBzBRRELER - ERREEE L INERE

SMEEHEZ REENERIAR - WHEINERE R
B5%(—F—T4F : 5%) FHFHE 2 IMEIEL
B U T EERTERTRRELEEEE
IR EHTHES R (— T —TF : 5%)KE<
BRBADER LI o BT RS S EE TR
W ERRZES%(—F—M4F : 5%) @ BlgH
EAMBKAEREE 2 BRFE o

Euro BT
Pound Sterling

2015 2014
—g-E% —2-pmE
HK$°000 HK$'000
T Tt
1,193 640

60 26

In the management’s opinion, the sensitivity analysis is
unrepresentative of the inherent foreign exchange risk as
the year end exposure does not reflect the exposure during
the year.

Fair value of financial assets and financial
liabilities

The fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities is
determined in accordance with generally accepted pricing
models based on discounted cash flows analysis.

The directors consider the carrying amounts of financial
assets and liabilities recorded at amortised cost in the
consolidated financial statements approximate their fair
values.

ERERS  BREDOITIARGEARE S INE
B - TR FRRRIE N RRERER -

THEEREMABRZATEE
SHAERSRAE ATEERAREER
KREBRIRERANETE

ESARBBHERANGRYBREIR S
MEERABRZEREREAHEERS



6. TURNOVER AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 6. EXBERISEER
(@) Turnover (a) =XE
Turnover represents the amounts received and EEEREFRNAEERRIIABTHE
receivable for goods sold and services provided by EmMREREz2EWRERKRRIE - B
the Group to external customers, licensing fees and W ke S 2 R e B R A E A ©
leasing income received and receivable during the
year.
The turnover of the Group comprises the following: RNEE 7 EEBERIETYRIE :
2015 2014
—EB-FHF —T-mF
HK$°000 HK$'000
TiEx TAT
Sales of cultural products HEXLER 1,424,826 1,132,279
Sales of systems and related products ~ $4& 25 RIBEE D 640,039 783,393
Licensing fees FRTIE S 296,892 636,750
Rendering of services TR AR 151,053 141,101
Leasing of systems products HEZRER 31,364 26,763
2,544,174 2,720,286
(b) Segment information (b) AEER

The operating segments have been identified on
the basis of internal management reports prepared
in accordance with accounting policies conforming
to HKFRSs, that are regularly reviewed by the
executive directors of the Company, for the purpose
of allocating resources to segments and assessing
their performance. Three operating and reportable
segments under HKFRS 8 Operating Segments are
identified as follows:

BEDRDRBENEEEMBERE LR
Z &SRR T I 2 P EDE IR R A
Bl WHARFRITESEREMUD
EERTEDBLMERERSE - BES
PHMELAFERLEN R - = ALK
BRAIRESREISMT

e Sales of cultural — includes income from trading of o HENIER - BEXERES
products cultural products A
e Systemssalesand  — includes income from sales of o ZMHER - BEEEEAR
licensing systems and related products, RraThE TRRER « B
software licensing and FratiE R B
customisation and provision RERERS 2
of related services LN
e Leasing of systems  — includes income from leasing of s HEZGEMR - EEEERFRESD
products systems products ZWA

The accounting policies of the operating and
reportable segments are the same as the Group’s

BERARED 2 BT BER AN Mt 2

AEBSFHORAAR - D EEERE DMK

Mz BBianaA (BER) - TEEMSEA -
SRR « RARD R 2 WA AR ST (0 rh R 1T
BRAREEZHIE) - lLHRAARBNITE
E-TBEERRE -MEZFESA UM
HAEREIRD B e o BRI -

accounting policies described in note 3. Segment
results represent the profit (loss) before taxation
earned by each segment, excluding interest income,
finance costs, unallocated income and expenses
such as central administration costs and directors’
salaries. This is the measure reported to the executive
directors of the Company, the chief operating
decision maker, for the purpose of resource allocation
and assessment of segment performance.
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6. TURNOVER AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 6. EXTERIEER-»

— continued

(b) Segment information - continued (b) 7EER-#
Information regarding the above segments is reported B LMD BEERZHRAT
below:

Sales of Systems Leasing of
cultural sales and systems
products licensing products  Consolidated
HEL ZRHER HEREK
Em KRR EfR e
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FTHEx FExT FTET TEx
Year ended BE-Z2-1F
30 June 2015 ARA=ZTHLEE
TURNOVER BEE
External and total revenue  ¥49MEE R AEUIA 1,424,826 1,087,984 31,364 2,544,174
RESULTS S
Segment result DERELE 123,405 (108,892) 2,631 17,144
Interest income B U A 3,899
Finance costs R AN (1,023)
Unallocated expenses, net  KOECHE S — %5 (7,147)
Profit before taxation M F B 12,873
Year ended HE_ZT—NF
30 June 2014 AA=ZTHLEFE
TURNOVER SES
External and total revenue  ¥49MEE RAAULA 1,132,279 1,561,244 26,763 2,720,286
RESULTS S
Segment result DEEE 51,400 (47,160) 1,387 5,627
Interest income AMEWA 5,000
Finance costs B FEAk AR (615)
Unallocated expenses, net KA BRI Sx — %5 (5,292

Profit before taxation BTt AT & F 4,760




— continued

6. TURNOVER AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

(b) Segment information - continued

EEBRSBEER &
(b) DEWER -~

Sales of Systems  Leasing of
cultural  sales and systems
products licensing products Consolidated
SHEXE AIHE HERSR
Em RisatiE Em e
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FEx FEx FEx FEx
Year ended HE-Z-1F
30 June 2015 AB=1HLEFE
Amounts included in the measure of ~ FREHE D EH A
segment profit or loss: EEze%E:
Amortisation and depreciation B NITE - 474,951 3,305 478,256
Impairment losses recognised for MEF R PR
development costs for systems BAFTIER 2 R(E
and networks 518 - 10,800 - 10,800
Impairment loss recognised for HEBAERZAE
goodwill i - 36,795 - 36,795
Year ended HE-T—WF
30 June 2014 NA=ZTHLEE
Amounts included in the measure of Rt E D sk
segment profit or loss: EiEzEE:
Amortisation and depreciation B NITE - 553,320 2,553 555,873
Impairment losses recognised MEG R PRI
for development costs for BRANFTRER 2 BB
systems and networks ] - 142,000 - 142,000
Impairment losses recognised for MRS R
deposits and prepaid development  FYAFTIER Y Fi{E
costs iStiE] - 126,474 - 126,474
Loss on disposal of property, HEWE  BER
plant and equipment B EE - m - 77

HRARAHITESREREERAE
TEHEHEE  BRBREMAR D

SELRES

No assets and liabilities are included in segment
reporting as they are not regularly reviewed by the
executive directors of the Company.
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6. TURNOVER AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 6.
— continued
(c) Geographical information
The following table provides an analysis of the
Group’s revenue and non-current assets by location
of customers and by location of assets respectively:

Revenue

ON
Year ended 30 June
BEAA=THLEE

2015
—g-%F
HK$°000
FHx

(c) HEER
AEBDREREFEREEMEMED 2
WA RIERBNEEDITEHIIR TK ¢

Non-current assets
FRBEE
As at 30 June
RANA=1H
2015
—Z2-hfF
HK$’000
TET

2014
—E—uE
HK$’000
BT

2014
—T—mFE
HK$'000
FHET

People’s Republic of China /% A R LANE
(the “PRC"), including (MhEDBE
Hong Kong and Macau BB RRM 1,780,420 1,837,662 1,153,252 1,100,885
Europe (mainly United BN (EZAKE
Kingdom and Germany) K BE) 530,688 624,968 37,371 42,810
Others Hith 233,066 257,656 434,004 1,730
2,544,174 2,720,286 1,624,627 1,145,425
7. OTHER INCOME 7. HtgA

Included in other income is interest income of
HK$3,899,000 (2014: HK$5,000,000).

8. FINANCE COSTS 8.

BRRFNEHERZRTT
EEM S

Interest on bank borrowings wholly repayable
within five years

H g A B T B A 3,899,00058 T (=&
—PO4F : 5,000,000/ 7T) °

PR

2015
—E-HE

2014
—T—mF
HK$'000
FHET

HK$°000
TEr

1,023 615




9. PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION

0

BR B A 2 A

2015 2014
—E-hE —E—PuF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FEx FHT
Profit before taxation has been arrived BAANEFIE
at after charging: Mk -
Directors’ remuneration BEMHE 3,787 3,210
Staff costs BERA 86,016 78,858
Retirement benefit scheme contributions BREREEMER
other than directors’ (BFBRIN 9,492 10,663
Total staff costs EEKANETE 99,295 92,731

Amortisation on development costs for systems R4 & AB4& BT A AN 7 4

and networks, included in cost of sales (G AHERAR) 466,473 543,405
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment, %1% - BiE RiREZITE

included in general and administrative expenses (it A—M& K& /TEZ HA) 11,783 12,468
Total amortisation and depreciation BRI ERE 478,256 555,873
Auditor’s remuneration ZEE B2 2,529 2,658
Cost of inventories recognised as expense BRERAL 2 FERA 1,741,607 1,606,088
Minimum lease payments paid under operating  ZRBELAEC N SERE

leases in respect of: NREEE

Rented premises HEME 2,257 2,474

Motor vehicles =} 3,950 3,409
Net foreign exchange loss & S ERFE 2,718 1,016

Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment HEY)% - BE k& E 2 EE - 771
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9. PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION - continued 9. BRBANGER =
Information regarding directors’, chief executive’s and BEES  THARRESHE 2 &
employees’ emoluments:
Directors =
Year ended 30 June 2015 BE-Z-FEAA=1HLEE

Performance  Retirement
Salaries related benefit Total
and other incentive scheme directors’
Fees benefits ~ payments contributions emoluments

Fek BRIFRE RAEF =

e HtEN BHeRe SEARR #HeRE
HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$'000

TET TET TET TET
(Note)
(EE)
Executive directors HITES
Prof. Paul Kan Man Lok [ERES 6 - 57 3,000 - 3,057
Mr. Lai Yat Kwong REHNEE - 57 - - 57
Non-executive directors FYTES
Mr. Leo Kan Kin Leung BERLE 5 20 - - 25
Mr. Frank Bleackley Frank Bleackley £ 50 50 - - 100
Prof. Julia Tsuei Jo ERHR 50 50 - - 100
Ms. Miranda Ho Mo Han [OE:Y 50 50 - - 100
Ms. Shirley Ha Suk Ling BBzt 5 234 105 4 348
160 518 3,105 4 3,787
Year ended 30 June 2014 HE_ZT—NFA=1THIEFE

Performance  Retirement
Salaries related benefit Total
and other incentive scheme directors’
Fees benefits payments ~ contributions  emoluments
Hek BRIERRE  RIFEH S

we  Hiteh FRzRs:  HEER  HemE
HKS000  HKS000  HKB'000  HKS000  HK$'000
TAL  TRT  TEn  TET  TAR

(Note)
(Fisx)
Executive directors HTES
Prof. Paul Kan Man Lok [GhE /e - 57 2,750 - 2,807
Mr. Lai Yat Kwong RHNLE - 57 - 1 58
Non-executive directors FHTES
Mr. Leo Kan Kin Leung HEREE 5 20 - - 25
Mr. Frank Bleackley Frank Bleackley st 4 50 50 - - 100
Prof. Julia Tsuei Jo ERHE 50 50 - - 100
Ms. Miranda Ho Mo Han ARRZT 50 50 - - 100
Ms. Shirley Ha Suk Ling E) i3 e 5 15 - - 20
160 299 2,750 1 3,210
Note: The performance related incentive payment is discretionary fieE : IMIERREM 2 REBIBEUE - AR
as recommended by the remuneration committee of the AIZEMEE SRR  WREAEEUBE
Company having regard to the Group’s financial results and BRESFTERBMETE °

the performance of the directors.




PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION - continued
Directors — continued

Mr. Lai Yat Kwong is the Chief Executive of the Company
and his emoluments disclosed above include those for
services rendered by him as the Chief Executive.

Employees

The five highest paid individuals of the Group include
one (2014: one) director of the Company. Details of the
emoluments of that director for the year ended 30 June
2015 are set out above. The aggregate emoluments of the
remaining four (2014: four) highest paid employees of the
Group, not being directors of the Company, are as follows:

9.

BREBLAT A —

BEE-4

RO EBAARTHRAE - £ LREY
B & BIEE BT T ABEIAS 2 H 8 -

==
AEERABREHFALERRE-—R(ZF
—F  —R)ARFES - RREFNEE
“E-RFRAZTHIEFEZHEFERR
EX o AEBEEMBIUE(ZF—EF : [UF)&
BFRE (UFEARAESR) ZMEEBELT

2014

—T—mF

HK$'000

FAET

Salaries and other benefits e REMER 5,224 5,399
Performance related incentive payments BRIERBEBZ &S 1,658 1,178
Retirement benefit scheme contributions RGBT 588 578
7,470 7,155

Emoluments of these employees were within the following
bands:

HEREE 2 MENF TFIEE :

Number of employee(s)

HK$1,500,001 — HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 7T — 2,000,000/ 7T 3 3
HK$2,000,001 — HK$2,500,000 2,000,0017& 7T — 2,500,000/ 7T 1 1
10. TAXATION 10. HiE

Taxation comprises: BIEEE
Enterprise Income Tax in the PRC RARE 2z SEMER

2014
—T—mF

HK$'000
TET

2,205 -

Under the Law of the PRC on Enterprise Income Tax (the
“EIT Law”) and Implementation Regulation of the EIT Law,
the tax rate of the PRC subsidiaries is 25% for both years.

Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% (2014:
16.5%) on the estimated assessable profits derived from
Hong Kong. There was no estimated assessable profit for
Hong Kong Profits Tax for both years.

The low effective tax rate is attributable to the fact that a
substantial portion of the Group’s profit neither arose in,
nor was derived from, Hong Kong and was accordingly not
subject to Hong Kong Profits Tax and such profit was either
exempt from Macau income tax or not subject to taxation in
any other jurisdictions.

BREBHEARKMBEREASIE(REMS
BOED) REEAEBOEERIED - P EZH8
DRI A2 515 £325% ©

EBFEH AR B BB Z Gt ERBURFE
16.5%( —Z—PU4E : 16.5%) Z B KT E - i
MERN » BB ST E G ERFOEF) -

ERBERERESAEE AN EMEEF
REBRR - TFIEREEE - WBRGNES
MEH - Mt FEN 2B RNRFIPTEH
BANE M RNEM RSN ERBIA -
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10. BiE-#
REFZRBEGARE R
BRI AT A SR -

10. TAXATION - continued
The taxation for the year can be reconciled to the profit
before taxation per the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income as follows:

L 2 E R ERZ

\

2014
—T—mEF
HK$'000
FHT

—2-1F

HK$’000
TEr

Profit before taxation ME R T 12,873 4,760
Tax at Hong Kong Profits Tax rate of 16.5% REBMERE16.5%

(2014: 16.5%) (ZZ—M%F : 16.5%):HE 2 HIB 2,124 785
Effect of different tax rates of subsidiary REMRNEMREE ZHB AR Z

operating in other jurisdiction TRRERZFE 750 -
Tax effect of profit exempted or not subject REAM RA D RER R AT

to taxation in other jurisdiction BERBRN BB E (6,900) (0,771)
Tax effect of income not taxable for BEMBL B OER WA Z

tax purposes s E (3,345) (2,972)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible for RAIBRS B Rz 2

tax purposes Tk 8,295 7,324
Utilisation of tax loss previously not recognised &) B4 KHER 2 FIBE B (151) (426)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised AERREERE HET 2 1,432 1,060
Taxation for the year RERZ 2 FiE 2,205 -

11. DIVIDENDS 11. RE

12.

2014 interim dividend paid in scrip form
equivalent to HKO.2 cents
(2015: nil) per share,

with a cash option EERS

BABRKRS NRERER
BRI ZFT—HF : )
Z-E-MEEENTHRS

2015
—E-fHF

2014
—T—mF
HK$'000
FHET

HK$’000
TER

= 15,133

The Board has resolved not to recommend any final
dividend for the year ended 30 June 2015.

EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculation of the basic earnings per share is based
on the profit for the year attributable to owners of the
Company of HK$8,927,000 (2014: HK$2,148,000) and on
the weighted average number of shares of 863,038,000
shares (2014 as restated: 754,029,000 shares) in issue.
The weighted average number of shares for the purpose
of calculating the earnings per share have been adjusted
to reflect the effect of the consolidation of ten shares of
HK$0.1 each into one share of HK$1 each of the Company
with effect in December 2014.

No diluted earnings per share is presented for the two years
ended 30 June 2015 as there were no potential ordinary
shares in issue during both years.

12.

EFEERETERRERE_FT—HF A
=T REFEZREBE -

BREF
BRERBANBIEAEEARTEE AR
S 78,927,000 7T (=B —U4E : 2,148,000/
J0) K BT 2 ke %15 21 B 863,038,000
BR(ZZ—WF(EES) : 754,029,0008%) &f
E - N EERBN NETERHEBBRE
BRA-—T—FE+ = 4R ARAEF+RE
REEOAB T ZB DA A—REREETH
TCZ AR e A% -

AP I B AT BT AR - EURE
E-T-RAFRNA=THLEMEFEALRE
SR ESE G AN o



13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

13. % - BENRE

Plant and
machinery and

Land and communications

buildings networks Total
RS EE B
T REF RBEASK a5
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’'000
FAT FAT FAT
CosT KAME
At 1 July 2013 RZZE—=FtHA—H 19,087 334,689 353,776
Currency realignment b 5 FHEE 2,224 37,947 40,171
Additions NE - 9,797 9,797
Disposals HE - (1,866) (1,866)
At 30 June 2014 RZZT—NFEA=+H 21,311 380,567 401,878
Currency realignment [E 5 FA % (4,006) (32,793) (36,799
Additions NE - 11,547 11,547
Disposals & - (1,495) (1,495)
At 30 June 2015 R=-B-—REXA=1+H 17,305 357,826 375,131
DEPRECIATION AND IMPAIRMENT FEMRE
At 1 July 2013 R-E—=F+A—H 6,008 302,995 309,003
Currency realignment b 5 415 34,803 35,218
Provided for the year FREE 276 12,192 12,468
Eliminated on disposals H & B S - (1,095) (1,095)
At 30 June 2014 RZZ—WHFEA=+H 6,699 348,895 355,594
Currency realignment bE 5 A (2,512) (29,995) (32,507)
Provided for the year FERNEE 210 11,573 11,783
Eliminated on disposals HE R - (1,489) (1,489)
At 30 June 2015 R-B—REA~A=1+H 4,397 328,984 333,381
CARRYING VALUES BREE
At 30 June 2015 R-B—REA~A=1+H 12,908 28,842 41,750
At 30 June 2014 RZZ—NFA=1H 14,612 31,672 46,284
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13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

13. W% - BERSRE =

— continued
2015 2014
—E-FHF S
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FAT
The carrying values of the Group’s property REE 2 Y FEERRRE
interests comprise: BIE
Freehold properties held outside Hong Kong REBUIMBBIFE KA EEZME 12,773 14,463
Properties held outside Hong Kong under long A& ASMbD R F5E £ H2L
leases (Note) 2% (B5E) 135 149
12,908 14,612

Note: Owner-occupied leasehold land is included in property, plant
and equipment as the allocations between the land and
buildings elements cannot be made reliably.

At 830 June 2015, certain land and buildings of the
Group with a carrying value of HK$7,948,000 (2014:
HK$8,794,000) were pledged to a bank as security for
banking facilities granted to the Group.

The Group leased equipment to customers on operating
lease terms. The carrying value of such equipment, which
was included in plant and machinery and communications
networks, was as follows:

MieE : R RETR O TRER il - B A
ERZBEET B AYE - BB &R

R-Z—AEXA=1+0 AEEEREES
7,948,000/ 70 ( —Z — P4 : 8,794,000/ 7T )
ZET LM REFOEMATIET  (EAAER
EBEITRE 2R -

AEEERGEREFANHELETEF - 58
REZREABEETARE EKERBEPR
ARSI

2015 2014

—E-IF —TmE

HK$’000 HK$’000

THET FAT

At cost B AME 76,714 82,800
Less: Accumulated depreciation A BEHITE (76,456) (81,812)
Carrying value IREE 258 988




14. DEVELOPMENT COSTS FOR SYSTEMS AND  14. Z&RFMBBAREKRAR

NETWORKS
2015 2014
“E-IF —ZE—F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHERT FHT
COST D®NE]
At beginning of the year F47 4,788,294 4,588,057
Addition NE 1,038 -
Currency realignment fE 5 AR (5) (223)
Transferred from deposits and BERE R
prepaid development costs BN FER A 564,252 200,460
At end of the year EiE 5,353,579 4,788,294
AMORTISATION #iH
At beginning of the year F1 3,725,948 3,040,689
Currency realignment [E % 9) (146)
Provided for the year FRRE 466,473 543,405
Impairment losses recognised BHERREEE 10,800 142,000
At end of the year Fet 4,203,212 3,725,948
CARRYING VALUE RMEE
At end of the year FiE 1,150,367 1,062,346
Development costs for systems and networks include all R R BB RBKANBIER MRS R
direct costs incurred in setting up and development of BZFIEREEMAR o NEB 2 RZf kALK 2 H
systems and networks. The Group’s development costs for BERRAREFTSBERIERFIR(RERE) TR
systems and networks are amortised over the estimated HeH -

economic useful lives of a maximum of five years.

During both years, the management conducted a review of RAFEA - BEEBENTAREH R EER 2R
the Group’s development costs for systems and networks SRR B AETER o ERBEIIRE
in light of the poor market condition. The value in use was R ARRBEMBFEENF10%ZE256%(=F
determined based on the estimated future cash flows —VOEF : 10%E25%) IR RERE - FA - R
discounted at rates ranging from 10% to 25% (2014: 10% BEREERED  BEBATHRZREESRE
to 25%) per annum. Based on the value in use estimation, 10,800,000/ 7t ( == — 4 : 142,000,000/
management has determined an impairment loss of JT) °

HK$10,800,000 (2014: HK$142,000,000) to be recognised
during the year.
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15. GOODWILL
Goodwill acquired in a business combination is allocated,
at acquisition, to the CGU related to provision of e-lottery
services, which is included in the systems sales and
licensing segment. Movement of goodwill during the year is

15.F&
EBAFINE 2 mERNKRERSEEEEEIR
HETHERBEZBREM T ARKHEER
BYESE - ER - R SBHMT -

as follows:
2015 2014
—B-HF —FmE
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHRT FAET
At 1 July »A—H 36,795 36,795
Impairment losses recognised BHERRERE (36,795) -
At 30 June BARA=1H - 36,795

The recoverable amount of the CGU is determined from
value in use calculations. The key assumptions for the value
in use calculations are those regarding the discount rate,
growth rate and expected changes to commission rate
and direct costs during the period. Management estimates
discount rate using pre-tax rate that reflect current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the CGU. The growth rate is based on industry
growth forecasts. Changes in commission rate and direct
costs are based on past practices and expectations of
future changes in the market.

During the year, the Group performed impairment review
for goodwill based on cash flow forecasts derived from
the most recent financial budgets and projected for the
next three (2014: three) years based on remaining life of
respective license, taken into account renewed license
period, and discounted at a rate of 20% (2014: 20%) per
annum which reflects current market assessments of the
time value of money and the risks specific to the CGU.
The directors of the Company are of the opinion that the
demand for e-lottery services will decrease in coming years.
Accordingly, impairment losses of HK$36,795,000 (2014
nil) have been recognised during the year ended 30 June
2015 after management’s assessment on the CGU.

BB 7 R EERTAEREEFEEE
E o EREEMEEZEIEZRRS RPN 2,
BE BEREURAES R R E R Z B
8- EEECBARRER MM EZRE
RHE S 35 B (7 2 5 E BB 2 B AT ) S B BR
RIERGE - BREUITEIERIDBBEE -
ﬁﬁT&E%&$Z@@MﬂE%W&ﬁ%Z

FR - AEEIRRAETERERINMEEEY
RIEE BT Rt F 2 (R R T iR 5T
BEFERTZAR=ZF(ZFT—HF : =F)
B RER - WFERAREER MS *Hﬁz
BEREREREENEERBRTF20% (=%
—O4F : 20%) 2 BRI =& - ;TﬁiaLftﬂ{Eﬁ
E‘ﬁ ° Zgﬂaj%%wu/tﬁ *X%ﬁliﬁﬁ%ﬁa%wm
REEHFEREEFELD - At &E=ZF—H
FRA=THIEFE  KLEEETHEREN
% - FERREEE36,795,0008 L (=T —
F )



16. DEPOSITS AND PREPAID DEVELOPMENT

COSTS

At the end of each reporting period, the management would
conduct a review of the Group’s deposits and prepaid
development costs. During the year ended 30 June 2014,
in light of the delayed commencement of certain technology
projects, the management determined that these deposits
and prepaid development costs were impaired based on
the estimated recoverable amounts with reference to their
values in use. During the year, no impairment has been
recognised based on the estimated recoverable amounts
with reference to their values in use. The values in use
were determined based on the estimated future cash
flows discounted at a rate at 25% (2014: 20%) per annum.
Based on the value in use estimation, management had
determined an impairment loss of HK$126,474,000 to be
recognised during the year ended 30 June 2014 (2015: nil).

Subsequent to the date of the reporting period, such
remaining deposits and prepaid development costs
amounting to HK$432,510,000 were refunded from the
counterparties.

17. INVENTORIES

16.

17.

BERFANBRERA

REREHER  TEBHALEB ZZEN
TEMFBRRA#EITER - HE T —MF <A
=t+HIEFE  EEERESTRHIEE TR
R B2EEFEREERZ M IRES
B OREALSES RBARERARE - F
A - BEE2KEEFEREE (AT AR E S RERE
RRE - FREEDNREGETARTEEREE
L25%(ZF—DU4E : 20%)BEIRETE o RIEE
BEEELN  ERERTREE-Z—mFN
A=+HItFERRRMEEE126,474,000%
TT(—ZT—RE &)

RAREH % R HFREZZH MRS
I8+ B3R A8 432,510,00078 7T ©

wE

2015 2014
—E-EF —T-mF
HK$°000 HK$'000
THET FAT
Raw materials R 9,840 13,157
Work in progress ERH 4,901 4,533
Finished goods BURK G 5,838 189,845
20,579 207,535
18. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 18. EWE S R HMERR

2014
—T—mF
HK$'000
FHET

2015
—E-HE

HK$’000
TEr

Trade receivables TEWE FERER 329,609 484,222
Advances to suppliers TBB e 5B 1,495,091 1,495,057
Other receivables FEUCE M BRE TR 25,712 44,749

1,850,412 2,024,028




ANNUAL REPORT 2015

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBREME

For The Year Ended 30 June 2015 &= —Z—AF A=+ HILFE

18. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES - continued
The Group maintains a well-defined credit policy regarding
its trade customers depending on their credit worthiness,
nature of services and products, industry practice and
condition of the market with credit period ranging from
30 days to 180 days. The advances to suppliers and
other receivables are unsecured, non-interest bearing and
refundable, and are expected to be realised in the next
twelve months from the end of the reporting period.

The aged analysis of trade receivables presented based
on the invoice date at the end of the reporting period is as

18. EWES RHMRM =
AEBBREESFEFETHEZEEEE - B
BESZER - RERERZEE - 1TREH
EkmigERMATEFNTFI0RE180H 215
BHA o TERE R R R8N B UL At BRFR D A 3K
1 TEFBRANRE - WS T %
+=EARHI -

FEUE Z R A RS BT AR RIE R EA 2
BRERDITE3ZAT -

follows:
2015 2014
—EZ-1fF —T-mF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHR FHR
0 - 60 days 0-60H 159,280 301,817
61 — 90 days 61-90H 87,741 52,633
91 — 180 days 91 -180H 82,588 129,772
329,609 484,222

Before accepting any new customer, the Group’s finance
and sales management team would assess the potential
customer’s credit quality and define credit limits for the
customers. Limits attributable to customers are reviewed
regularly with reference to past settlement history. The
Group’s finance and sales management team considers
trade receivables that are neither past due nor impaired to
be of a good credit quality as continuous repayments have
been received.

19. DEPOSITS, BANK BALANCES AND CASH
The deposits, bank balances and cash comprises short-
term deposits with maturity of three months or less and
cash held by the Group. The deposits and bank balances
carry interest at an average rate of 0.09% (2014: 0.56%)
per annum.

Certain bank balances and cash of HK$31,762,000 (2014:
HK$20,828,000) were denominated in Renminbi (“RMB”),
which is not freely convertible currency in the international
market. The exchange rate of RMB is determined by the
Government of the PRC and the remittance of these funds
out of the PRC is subject to exchange restrictions imposed
by the Government of the PRC.

REREFRFHEL - ARBEZMBRIEES
EEGEHEEERPZEEL R  YAER
FZEEE BTRFLEERSE2ERER
FRACERE HEITEMN - REPHEEENR
AEEZMBRHEERBBRA/RBHAIR
REZRKEZEFABRIFERELE -

19. B - RITEH#RERES
BH - BITEHERSeEIHBEA=EAK
NAZEHEREAEEREZRE - BRR
RITRBIETHEFR.0IE (=T —F :
0.56E )5t & °

5 8 31,762000 B L (=T — @ F
20,828,000 7T ) 2 & THRITAE#R IR E TH A
ARE(TARE DFHE - M ARBILIEATHRE
SHiSERE R & o ARMERHPEK
FET  APBEELZSESAITEABNE
e 2 FINGE B I FT AR IR o



20. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES
As at 30 June 2015, the balance of trade and other
payables included trade payables of HK$72,107,000 (2014:
HK$18,778,000). The aged analysis of trade payables
presented based on the invoice date at the end of the
reporting period is as follows:

20. ERE S REMBRER
R-ZT—ARENA=1H BNESREME
K2 & BIE72,107,0008 7T ( —ZF — P04 -
18,778,000 L) 2 BN B SRR - ENE S
AR RS AR AR IRIR S = A A 2 BRER D AT
25T -

2015 2014
—E-EF —T-mF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FHET FAET

0 - 60 days 0-60H 24,137 18,493
61— 90 days 61-90H 6,439 -
91 — 180 days 91-180H 40,635 -
> 180 days >180H 896 285
72,107 18,778

The credit period for purchases of goods ranged from 30

days to 60 days.

Other payables mainly represent receipt in advance and

accruals.

21. WARRANTY PROVISION

BEERZEEHNFI0HE60R -

e EMARRE R ATRMGRIBRTRRRER -

21. RERE

2015 2014

—F-5F —TmF

HK$’000 HK$'000

THEx FAT

At 1 July wEA—H 1,294 1,246
Currency realignment fE 5 AR (229) 79
Provided during the year FREE 977 1,088
Utilised during the year FREHH (968) (1,119
At 30 June WANA=Z+H 1,074 1,294

The warranty provision represents the management’s best
estimate of the Group’s liability under 12-month warranties
granted on manufactured products, based on prior
experience and industry average for defective products.

REBBEEEEREBELREENY AR
MERZEBHE e TERR T —EARK
BB A LB E EARED 2 KEFE -
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22. BANK BORROWINGS

22.

RITEE

2015 2014
—E-TF T
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHT FAT

Bank borrowings comprise the following: RITEERE

Bank loans RITERK

Secured (Note) B (P EE) 13,433 19,131
Unsecured =3 sig = 12,500
13,433 31,631

Note: The bank loans are secured by the Group’s land and
buildings with carrying value of HK$7,948,000 (2014:
HK$8,794,000).

The above bank loans bear variable interest of 2.8% (2014:
2.2% to 3.4%) per annum.

MisE © RITERIAAREBEIRE(E 47,948,000 7T
(ZZ—PU% : 8,794,000/87T) 2 L it RIEF
YR o

LRI ERIE28E(ZE—UF : 22BE
SAE) ZFENFREEE ©

2015
—2-%F

2014
—Z—F
HK$'000
THTT

HK$’000
TER

Carrying amount repayable: BBERHEE -
On demand or within one year ZEAg—FNEE 4,720 17,283
After one year but within two years —FREMEA 4,357 4,783
After two years but within five years MERBRER 4,356 9,565
13,433 31,631

Less: Amount due within one year included B OREBBEETR—ER

in current liabilities Ehsii e | (4,720) (17,283)
Amount due after one year R—ERIH2EE 8,713 14,348

As at 30 June 2014, bank loans repayable on demand or
within one year included bank loans of HK$12,500,000
(2015: nil) which contained a repayable on demand clause
in accordance with the terms of the bank facilities of a
subsidiary of the Group. These amounts had been classified
as current liabilities. As at 30 June 2015 and 2014, a
corporate guarantee was provided by Champion to a bank
in respect of banking facilities granted to the Group.

RZZT—MENA=Z1H  RBRANK—FAE
BZRITERBERITE 12,500,000 7T
(ZZ2—01F &) ZEFRBEASENBA
RIZRITRVE IR - BIRBAER - BREKIE
PEARPDAGE RZTE—RAFR-_FT—NF
ANAZTH  EERAEEMERRITRER
BITIEHABIELR -



23. RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES

Defined contribution scheme

Certain subsidiaries of the Company participate in a
retirement benefit scheme covering a portion of their
employees. The assets of the scheme are held separately
from those of the Group in funds under the control of
independent trustees.

Commencing from December 2000, the Group enrolled
all eligible employees in Hong Kong into a mandatory
provident fund (the “MPF”) scheme. The retirement benefit
cost of the MPF scheme charged to the profit or loss
represents contributions to the MPF scheme by the Group
at rates specified in the rules of the MPF scheme.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries in the PRC
are members of government-managed retirement benefit
scheme operated by the respective local government in
the PRC. The Group is required to contribute a specified
percentage of payroll costs to the retirement benefit
scheme to fund the benefits. The only obligation of the
Group with respect to the retirement benefit scheme is to
make the specified contributions.

During the year, retirement benefit scheme contributions
paid for the above scheme amounted to HK$942,000 (2014:
HK$2,310,000).

Defined benefit scheme

Certain subsidiaries of the Company operate a self-
administered and funded pension scheme. The scheme
provides defined pension benefits with reference to the
final salary of the members at retirement and their length of
service. The scheme is closed to new members.

The contributions which are determined by a qualified
actuary on the basis of triennial valuations using the
projected unit credit method are charged to the profit or
loss. Under the scheme, the employees are entitled to a
pension between 1.67% and 2.50% of final salary for each
year of pensionable service at an age of 65. No other post-
retirement benefits are provided. The most recent actuarial
valuations of scheme assets and the present value of
the defined benefit obligations were carried out as at 30
June 2015 by Mr. Adam Stanley, Fellow of the Institute
of Actuaries, for the accounting reporting purpose. The
assumptions which have the most significant effect on
the results of the valuation are those relating to the rate of
return on investments and the rates of increase in salaries,
pensions and share dividends.

23.

3B ARAE R 5T
ERHREE
AATETEFHEAR AL EERRA
BFEE - BB AERARE L AES
B - AERE B REALH 2SR -

A-TTTFEI-AR  ARERTHEES
ARHERSRBHEAES (B )5
B - RIRZS IR 2 BT S 4T BIRCIERI Ao
AEBERESHBIRANEE 2L F LB
STBIfE 2 45 -

AEERFEZMEARIEESSAETEZM
FTBIHETT < BT ERRAEMEABIKE - &
SEARERRENFEELEER L2 Fe
PRASEFR A ABFIPT TR © AEEBLRAKAEF
Bl — B ERERIEEH -

FR - LM EE X2 RIKEF T B
I A942,0005 7T ( —E — 4 : 2,310,000
JT) °

EFREA TS
ARRETETHBRARRIATERRED
ZERAREEE] o EaltEt BliR(E B INRINE 2 &
BE e MERBFMRHEERASREN o %
BT ESHKE2ME -

RIES B RBEME =FIRB BN EDAG
BEETEZHFTNIBENG - REZ1E - BB
—RE M5 - B FIREERKE Y
RIGEBN T HREFHE1.67%Z2.50% 2 BIK
& o NEBWERHEEMBRKERT - &bz
FrEEEREMELTEBNAERER =S
—hERNA=THAEBEZEEEFEg TAdam
StanleysCAE T - MEETETEHRBREET - ¥
HEARREEAFE Y BRAEHRILERR
RRFHE RS ER S 2 FHE -
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23. RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES - continved  23. ERIKERIFTE| -2
Defined benefit scheme - continued EBERGTE -2
The main actuarial assumptions used were as follows: FrTATEREERENT :

At 30 June 2015 At 30 June 2014

*Ei
HK$'000 HKS 000
FHT FHBIT
Discount rate ALIE R 3.80% 4.30%
Expected rate of salary increase TEEF S TR 3.40% 3.50%
Future pension increases RERIRES TR 3.20% 3.30%
The actuarial valuation updated to 30 June 2015 by Mr. BiRAdam Stanley t A EFHE T —HF <A
Adam Stanley showed that the market value of the scheme =tHZREMERR  5TE ﬁEZ mEA
assets was HK$372,064,000 (2014: HK$358,299,000) and 372,064,000/ 7T (= ZF — 4 : 358,299,000
that the actuarial value of these assets represented 82% BT MZSEEZREEERSHESRE
(2014: 78%) of the benefits that had accrued to members. BEF 282%( —Z—PU4F : 78%) °
Amounts recognised in the consolidated statement of profit HERERANRAEFENGEBERAMEME
or loss and other comprehensive income in respect of the Wk ERz2BHT ¢

defined benefit pension plans are as follows:

2015 2014

ZE2-RF —F-F

HK$’000 HK$'000

FAT FHET

Current service cost BEITRB AR (3,451) (2,421)
Scheme administrative costs FTEIFTHEN A (1,395) (1,593)
Net interest expense FEXHIFE (3,708) (4,340)

Components of defined benefit costs recognised  MWMEFE R 2 FREEF

in profit or loss (included in general and AR ED
administrative expenses) (GIA—BRITBREH) (8,554) (8,354)
Remeasurement on the net defined benefit BN ETEEMNEE

liability: R
Return on plan assets (excluding amounts FHEIEEZER(TREERA

included in net interest expense) FEZHFEZEH) 34,770 18,627
Actuarial gains arising from changes AABBREBFEE

in demographic assumptions ZIEE W M 6,021
Actuarial losses arising from changes SRR EFEL

in financial assumptions ZIEEER (28,773) (23,569)
Actuarial losses arising from changes KRBRREFMEL

in experience assumptions ZHREEERE (1,297) -

Components of defined benefit costs recognised A E th 2 E U TER
in other comprehensive income 2 ERERAIR AR D 5,141 1,079

Total comprehensive expense 2HE BB (3,413) (7,275)




23. RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES - continued ~ 23. BAEFGTE-#

Defined benefit scheme - continued EXETEREE -2
The amount included in the consolidated statement of RAAREB 7 FEEMRAKRSTEAEMELE
financial position arising from the Group’s obligations in RO AGZAFBARIER - Hatan T -

respect of its defined benefit pension plans is as follows:

2015 2014

—E-®F —TmEF

HK$’000 HK$’000

TET FAT

Fair value of scheme assets AEEEZ ATER 372,064 358,299

Present value of funded obligations BeEECRAE (452,675) (457,526)

Net liability arising from defined benefit obligation FEB/EF|FEIERE S 2 BEFEE (80,611) (99,227)
Movements in the present value of the defined benefit TERERAEEZ REZBNT

obligation are as follows:

2015 2014
“E-IF —E-mF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FTHERT FHAT
Opening defined benefit obligation FOERBNEE 457,526 383,701
Currency realignment BEE 3 (41,150) 49,780
Current service cost BATERISAA 3,451 2,421
Interest cost FBHA 17,881 18,489
Remeasurement (gains) losses: EiaE () B ¢
Actuarial gains and losses arising from ANOBREEFEL 2
changes in demographic assumptions B RER (441) (6,021)
Actuarial gains and losses arising from B BREESMEEZ
changes in financial assumptions BB N EE 28,773 23,569
Actuarial gains and losses arising from KRR EHEEL
changes in experience assumptions BE W REE 1,297 -
Contributions R 1,591 1,668
Benefits paid FrHER (16,253) (16,081)

Closing defined benefit obligation FRETEENRE 452,675 457,526
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23. RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES - continued  23. RBRAEFIGTE-#

Defined benefit scheme — continued EREEAGTE =
Movements in the fair value of scheme assets are as FrEIEEC AT EEZEHNAT ¢
follows:
2015 2014
—E-RF —ZT-mF
HK$’000 HK$'000
AT FAT
Opening fair value of plan assets FAETEEE A FEE 358,299 289,929
Currency realignment fE N AR (32,424) 38,316
Interest income FEYA 14,173 14,149
Scheme administrative costs FTEIFTHE A (1,395) (1,593)
Return on plan assets (excluding amounts HEBEZER(TBIEREA
included in net interest expense) FREZ Mz e8E) 34,770 18,627
Contributions M 14,894 14,952
Benefits paid i1 A (16,253) (16,081)
Closing fair value of plan assets FRAEEEZRTER 372,064 358,299
The fair value of the scheme assets at the end of the FEEERRE AR 2 A FEED TN
reporting period is analysed as follows: N

Fair value of plan assets

STEIEEZ AT ER
2015 2014
—E-RF —T—mE
HK$’000 HK$'000
FAET FHET
Equity instruments EETE 326,778 317,647
Debt instruments EHBIA 38,702 36,972
Other assets HiEE 6,584 3,680
372,064 358,299
The actual return on scheme assets was HK$47,548,000 FrEIEE 2 BRI TR 547,548,000/ T (==
(2014: HK$31,183,000). —PU4F : 31,183,000/ 1) °
24. DEFERRED TAXATION 24, EEFIE
At the end of the reporting period, the Group had unused RIS HTER - AEBERS A2 HIEEE
tax losses of approximately HK$66,172,000 (2014: #766,172,0005 7T ( =& — PO 4E : 58,406,000
HK$58,406,000) available for offset against future profits. BIT)  ATRERIEREZ BT o ARKREETE
No deferred tax asset has been recognised due to the AR ZHEFMRR MY EERELEHRIBE
unpredictability of future profit streams. These tax losses E o WA E 8 ] &R B R 458 o

may be carried forward indefinitely.




25. B

25. SHARE CAPITAL

Number of shares Amount
RAEE 8
2015 2014 2015 2014
—E-1F —T-F “E-IfF —T-ME
'000 '000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BAT M5t PATF BT TAERT TAT
Authorised: EE
Ordinary shares of HK$1 SREESTLZ
(2014: HK$0.1) LEk
gach (ZZ—mF : 01%87T) 1,200,000 12,000,000 1,200,000 1,200,000
Issued and fully: NEITREE -
At beginning of the year =) 7,588,750 7,516,029 758,875 751,603
Issue of shares as 2013 PARR B BATRINER
final scrip dividend ZT-=FRPKE - 50,347 - 5,035
Issue of shares as 2014 PR BB TR 1ER
interim scrip dividend T UEREKRE - 22,374 - 2,237
Effect of consolidated of shares ARz 2
(Note (b)) (FiEEw) (6,829,875) - - _
Issue of shares (Note (c)) S GIGER) 227,663 - 227,663 -
Balance at 30 June RAAZTRz&E 986,538 7,588,750 986,538 758,875
Notes: Bf3E -

(@)

On 10 December 2014, the Company purchased 6 shares of
HK$0.1 each of the Company at the total price of HK$0.516
on the Exchange which shares were subsequently cancelled
on 15 December 2014.

Effective on 16 December 2014, ten ordinary shares of the
Company HK$0.1 each were consolidated to one ordinary
share of HK$1.

On 16 January 2015, the Company completed the issue
and allotment of 227,662,506 rights shares at an issue
price of HK$1 per rights share. The net proceeds from the
rights issue, after deducting directly attributable costs, were
approximately HK$223,443,000. All shares issued rank
pari passu with the then existing shares in issue in all
respects.

RZZE—NFE+=A+H  FAARERHH
A% E180.516 B LI EI6IRA R B SR E(E
0BT ZI » RERMERN_-F—HF
TZATHEBHH -

REZZF—WE+=ZA+RBARBER - AA7A
TIRGREECAB T LR A AR
HE1BITZ @R -

R=ZZ—RAFE—A+/xB  AAREHAN
BRERRKRO - BTz BTEETRER
227,662,506 AR AR 17 © NER B B2 FEIE K AR
% - (IR FT1S FIE F §8 40 5 223,443,0005
T FTABREETZROES HHHEERE
BEETRHEZER SR -
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26. SHARE OPTION SCHEME

Each of the Company and Champion has a share option
scheme under which eligible persons, including directors
of the Company, Champion or any of their respective
subsidiaries, may be granted options to subscribe for
shares of the Company and Champion respectively.

(i) The Company

On 30 November 2012, the Company adopted a
share option scheme (the “Scheme”). The purpose
of the Scheme was to attract and to retain quality
personnel and to provide them with incentive to
contribute to the business and operation of the
Group. Under the Scheme, the directors of the
Company may grant options to any eligible persons
of the Group, including directors, employees or
consultants of the Company, its subsidiaries or
affiliates or any discretionary trust whose discretionary
objects include the aforesaid persons or a company
beneficially owned by the aforesaid persons as well
as customers, suppliers or advisers of the Group,
to subscribe for shares of the Company. An option
granted is exercisable at any time for a period
determined by the directors of the Company which
should not be more than ten years from the date of
grant, where the acceptance date should not be later
than 21 days after the date of offer.

The exercise price per share (subject to adjustment
as provided therein) of the option granted under the
Scheme is equal to the highest of (i) the nominal
value of the shares; (i) the closing price per share as
stated in the daily quotation sheet of the Exchange
on the date of grant, which must be a business day;
and (i) the average closing price per share as stated
in the daily quotation sheet of the Exchange for the
five business days immediately preceding the date of
grant. The maximum number of shares in respect of
which the options may be granted under the Scheme
shall not exceed 10% of the issued share capital of
the Company at the date of approval of the Scheme.
The total maximum number of shares which may be
issued upon exercise of all outstanding options must
not exceed 30% of the issued share capital of the
Company from time to time. The number of shares
in respect of which options may be granted to any
one grantee in any 12-month period is not permitted
to exceed 1% of the shares of the Company in issue
on the last date of such 12-month period, without
prior approval from the Company’s shareholders. No
option under the scheme has been granted since the
adoption of such scheme.

26. HEMRERTE
AATRBEERABRIETE - Bkt - AA
BAL(REARR  BEREEAZ MK
BARZES) TEEBREADBIRBAR
ARBEZRL «

(i)

RAFE

R=F——F+—A=+H8 " xQRKE
m—IEREARERT B[] - 51812 B
WERRAN R RIEEHAE - WIREHNR
FHAKEEBREEELZER - B
B8 AARESAIRASEE S
BRATREERE SRR EEAR
A EMBARSBBARCZES &
8 - EM - REMEEEEMmESZEA
BIEEA Lt AL Sl AT ERS
HEEZAR  URAEBZEFE - #iE
RSB AAR LB - WRBEAQF
&5 - EREZBEBREANNRANGIES
B i AR 2 (R (AT BS R T8 - MEFRESSE
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26. SHARE OPTION SCHEME - continued

(ii) Champion

On 30 November 2012, Champion adopted a share
option scheme (the “Champion Option Scheme”).
The purpose of the Champion Option Scheme
was to attract and to retain quality personnel and
other persons and to provide them with incentive
to contribute to the business and operation of
Champion and its subsidiaries (the “Champion
Group”). Under the Champion Option Scheme, the
directors of Champion might grant options to any
directors, employees or consultants of Champion,
its subsidiaries or affiliates or any discretionary trust
whose discretionary objects included the aforesaid
persons or a company beneficially owned by the
aforesaid persons as well as customers, suppliers
or advisers of the Champion Group, to subscribe for
shares of Champion. An option granted by Champion
was exercisable at any time for a period determined
by the directors of Champion which should not be
more than ten years from the date of grant, where
the acceptance date should not be later than 21 days
after the date of offer.

The exercise price per share (subject to adjustment
as provided therein) of the option granted under the
Champion Option Scheme equal to the highest of (j)
the nominal value of the shares; (i) the closing price
per share as stated in the daily quotation sheet of
the Exchange on the date of grant, which must be
a business day; and (iii) the average closing price
per share as stated in the daily quotation sheet of
the Exchange for the five business days immediately
preceding the date of grant. No share option has
been granted by Champion under the Champion
Option Scheme since the adoption of such scheme.

27. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in
the Group will be able to continue as a going concern
while maximising the return to stakeholders through the
optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The Group’s
overall strategy remains unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of equity
attributable to owners of the Company, comprising issued
share capital, reserves and retained profits.

The directors of the Company review the capital structure
on a bi-annual basis. As part of this review, the directors
consider the cost of capital and the risks associated with
each class of capital. Based on recommendations of the
directors, the Group will balance its overall capital structure
through new share issues and share buy-backs as well as
issue of new debt or redemption of existing debt.

6. BRESE =

(i) ®EE
R=F——F+—HA=+H TBEEH
—IRERERT B ([ EERETS) -
ZEEBRETEZENERRKS &
BEEFABREMAL  WRER
EHREEREMBAR([EEER])HE
HREBELZER - BiETEEARE
T8 BEEEAREASREE - &
WEARKMBARZES  [EEE
B SKEMEEEThEZSEABEE
Al bt AL SR EMALESHEEZ
AR UERBEEEZEFS « HE®EK
BAARLERE  UREBEZRKR
7o BEEREZEREATNESESEM
TR 2 BRI T - MATEEE 2
M E A BERER D AR TS
R4 MERBSHBETERELN B
%218 °

BECEEREFEIREZEBREZS
BEATEE (PR E A EEL AR) &)
BROEE : (AL BSH(ERE%R)
RSETTBRERHR2 TG KT
B RiNZERLAHITAFEZ XA
RSB BRERMR 2 BRKZHD T
WHE  ZEFHUERREAE - BERMIA
R EERERETE BRI
I RERRAE -

27. EXERER

AEEETRHER  UHRAEEANSEER
AL EEE TN EE - AR INEBRERE
BERA HFEFORFNEFREER
REE 2 BRI FFE 3

REE 2 ERNEBRAREES AEEERAE
B BHREEEBEITEA - BERRZER -

ARRERGLFEMELREE - EREHNZ
—#n  EESEZBEARARERALER 2
HERER - RIBESER - ARERBEBET
My mBRORBETHEXELRER
& - ATEEBEANERE -
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28. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

Capital expenditure in respect of property, plant and
equipment and development costs for systems

28.

EREERINZERDE
i MR BRRR R ABEAE

BARESE

2015
—2-1F

2014
—TpE
HK$'000
TRT

HK$°000
TERT

and networks authorised but not contracted for Az BRFEY 27,690 21,684
29. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS 29. REFERH
The Group as lessee AEBEREAEA

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had future
minimum lease payments payable under non-cancellable
operating leases in respect of rented premises and motor
vehicles which fall due as follows:

2015
—E-FEF

Land and

buildings
T RIEF
HK$’000
FH

Operating leases which RTYEHERZ

RRETER - AEBZIAGHEEREE
AEZ A FEEERE Y AR REENTEE
HEFEBERAT ¢

2014
—B-mF
Land and
buildings
T REF
HK$'000
FHAT

Motor
vehicles
B
HK$'000
FHAT

Motor
vehicles
e
HK$°000
THET

expire: RERE -
Within one year —FR 961 2,440 934 2,850
In the second to fourth year E_FEENF
inclusive A 2,175 2,108 4,167 3,151
3,136 4,548 5,101 6,001

Leases are negotiated for terms of one to four years and
rentals are fixed for terms of one to four years.

The Group as lessor

At the end of the reporting period, the Group contracted
with lessees in respect of leasing of plant and machinery
and communications networks which fall due as follows:

BERRIEEFIN T —FE2NF > Ml
TYR—FENF 2 FHEE -

REBERHAA

NREH TR - AEERESRRE EHEE A
MBEREEEBEPIIALK - HIHERW
T

2015 2014

—E-IF =i

HK$’000 HK$'000

TET FHAT

Within one year —&FR 468 1,620
In the second to fifth year inclusive E_FEERER 8,443 9,822
Over five years HEUE 4,104 4,296
13,015 15,738




30. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 30. BEALXRS
During the year, the Group had the following transactions FR - NEFETELETNIZS :
with Champion:

2015 2014
“E-5fF —T—mE

HK$000 HK$'000
FB7 it

Nature of transactions REME

Fees paid by the Group to Champion for the REBRRAATESL

provision of office premises and facilities, RERAZWERBEA
and management services, on cost basis REBRK B 900 900
Fees paid by the Group to Champion REBRTE T BRSE
for treasury services ZEH 665 738
Commission paid by the Group to Champion REBMTBELFETRAT]
for the issue of shares of the Company fn 2 e 2,566 -
These transactions were carried out after negotiation ZERGIRAEBETEEEBET o Bt
between the Group and Champion. The fees paid for the PAEYERBEAREEBREAXNZER
provision of office premises and facilities, and management TRBERTB R BHAR—ANNF+Z
services were in accordance with the management A+ BZzEBRESN  ZHEc RN E—
agreement entered into with Champion dated 20 December TE—-—ARAHAEE-

1996, which was renewed on 5 January 2010.

As at 30 June 2015 and 2014, a corporate guarantee was RZE—AFER-_ZF—NFA=+H BE
provided by Champion to a bank in respect of banking MAEEFTERBITREMBITIEL R AE
facilities granted to the Group. R o
The key management personnel of the Group are the REEFTEETBEABARARBITEERRA
executive directors of the Company and the five highest o AT o TN FHEZ FEF BN T
paid individuals. The details of remuneration paid to them 9o

are set out in note 9.
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31. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 31. ZEMBEAT
Details of the Company’s principal subsidiaries at 30 June RZFE—RAFAA=THER=ZZT—WFRA
2015 and 30 June 2014 are as follows: =1TH ARASFEWMBAR ZFEOT
Place of Proportion of nominal value
incorporation/ Nominal value of issued of issued share capital held
Name of subsidiaries operations share capital/registered capital by the Company Principal activities
TR, ERTRAEE/ EAREEERT
i PR Fd- ks &R BRAHELHI TEEH
2015 2015 2014
—g-5% : “¥-nF -“FTMF
Aspire Management British Virgin Islands Ordinary Ordinary 71.2% 71.2%  Investment holding
Limited ERERARES US$2,636,320 US$2,636,320 REER
EER Lk
2636,320F%  2,636,320%7T
Bingo Profits Limited British Virgin Islands Ordinary US$1 Ordinary US$1 100% 100%  Investment holding
REEMRES EERIET LERIET RERR
China Sports Network Samoa Ordinary Ordinary 100% 100%  Development of gaming
Limited EETHE US$1,000,000 US$1,000,000 software, sports contents,
EEGERAR EER LRk sports websites and
1,000000%7x  1,000,000%7T sports network systems
BB BEER
BEOURES
BRAGHEER
Good Holdings Limited*  Republic of Ordinary Ordinary 100% 100%  Investment holding
Seychelles 1S$50,000 US$50,000 RBER
ERMAN EER LRk
50,000% 7T 50,000% T
Kantone (UK) Limited United Kingdom Ordinary Ordinary 100% 100%  Investment holding
G £5,500,000 £5,500,000 RERR
ERER gl
5500,000%4  5,500,00054
Keen Pacific Limited* Samoa Ordinary US$1 Ordinary US$1 100% 100%  Provision of treasury services
BEDEHS EBRIER el B RUEIERE
Kontone Development Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 ~ Ordinary HK$2 100% 100%  Provision of treasury services
Limited % EERVET LERoET RESTURE
BRERERAF
M.C. Holdings Limited*  Cayman Islands Ordinary Ordinary 100% 100%  Investment holding
REEHS £5,500,002 £5,500,002 RERR
ERER LEkR
55000024 5,500,002 4
Multitone Electronica Brazil Ordinary Ordinary 100% 100%  Distribution of communication
Limitada i R$300,000 R$300,000 systems and equipment
EER LRk DEBERRREE

300,000E22@ 300,000 2




31. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES - continued

Place of
incorporation/

Name of subsidiaries operations

AL/

WEARERE

Multitone Electronics PLC  United Kingdom
5
Multitone Electronics Malaysia
Sdn. Bhd. ERER
Multtiton Elektronik GmbH ~ Germany
8
Peak Vantage Limited”  British Virgin
Islands/Macau
SEgRRES/
R
Pearl Delta Inc* Samoa/Macau
EEGEHS,/ AN

Shenzhen Hengyu Science  PRC
and Technology Company #
Limited*

BEMRGRINERAR!

Silverstand Investments  Samoa
Limited” BEGHS
Smart Delta Inc." Samoa
BEGHES
Smart (Macao Commercial  Macau
Offshore) Limited pdil
ER(EMEFEERYE)
BRATR

31.

Nominal value of issued
share capital/registered capital

ERTRAEE/
EfER

2015 2014
—E-RE —T-E
Ordinary Ordinary
£3,830,107 £3,830,107
ERER TR
3830,107%48  3,830,107%45
Ordinary Ordinary
MR285,000 MR285,000
LBk TR
285,000 285,000
BREER BREET
Ordinary Ordinary
£€1,022,584 €1,022,584
LBk SRR
1,022 5848 T 1,022,584B170
Ordinary US$1 ~ Ordinary US$1
EBRIER LER1ET
Ordinary US$1 ~ Ordinary US$1
EBERIER ERBRIET
Registered capital  Registered capital
RMB24,000,000 RMB24,000,000
TMERARYE AfEXARE
24,000,000 24,000,000[]
Ordinary US$1 ~ Ordlinary US$1
EBRIER ERBRAFET
- Ordinary US$1
LERET
Ordinary Ordinary
MOP100,000 MOP100,000
LBk TR
JPF5%100,0008  £F9%100,000E

FTEMBLAT &

Proportion of nominal value
of issued share capital held

by the Company
AAAEGEERT

RAEEL G
2015 2014
—B-nf —T-DNF
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
71.2% 77.2%
100% 100%
- 100%
100% 100%

Principal activities

FEXK

Investment holding, design
and manufacture of
communication systems
and equipment

RARR « R RAEE
BERGRER

Manufacturing of communication
systems and equipment
EERERRNR

Distribution of communication
systems and equipment
DIEBERRRERRE

Provision of treasury services

RS IRTS

Provision of treasury services

R TRS

Investment holding
RAER

Investment holding
RAER

Provision of treasury services

AR

Provision of service, software
licensing and trading in
communication systems
and equipment

RERY - BHETER
BEEBERRNR
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31. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES - continued

31.

Place of
incorporation/ Nominal value of issued
Name of subsidiaries operations share capital/registered capital
TR, ERTRAEE/
WEARERE B &R
2015 2014
mt 3 —T-MmF
Success (Macao Macau Ordinary QOrdinary
Commercial Offshore) &5 MOP100,000 MOP100,000
Limited EER il
Ky ORPIBER B % RT) JRP9%5100,0008  2F5%100,000E]
BRAR
Wollaston Limited* Samoa/Macau Ordinary US$1 Ordinary US$1
BEGHE,/ R ERRIER TRRIET
Zonal Care Incorporated*  British Virgin Ordinary US$2 Ordinary US$2
Islands/Macau EER2ER ERROET
EEgRRES/
RFI
Shenzhen Helper Science  PRC Ordinary Ordinary
Development Company RMB50,000,000  RMB50,000,000
Limited (“Shenzhen EBRARY  EERARY
Helper’) 50,000,000 50,000,000E]
FImERR AR
BBRARRYMER])
* Directly held by the Company.
& Wholly owned foreign enterprise for a term of 20 years

commencing 17 October 2003.

& AML indirectly holds 61.54% (2014: 61.54%) equity interest
in this company, hence it is accounted for as a subsidiary of
the Group.

" The subsidiary had been disposed of during the year.

FEMBLAT &

Proportion of nominal value
of issued share capital held

by the Company Principal activities
ARREEBRT
RAEELS FTEXH
2015 2014
—E-nf —T-DNF
100% 100%  Provision of consulting
services, research and
development, and trading
of cultural products
REERRS  HRRFAE
UREE L ER
100% 100%  Investment holding
RERR
100% 100%  Strategic investments in
advanced technology and
e-commerce projects,
and provision of treasury
senvices
RERBREFHEEAL
RBURE - REHME
R
47.5%" 47.5%"  E-lottery business

* HARBEEFE

# 2EHNBELE  FHA-ZT=F+A++t
Hisr —+4F -

a AMLRE BB Z A F]61.54% (== —P94F :
61.54%) 2 PR AHERS - MHEBERARNEE
MEBAF °

" ZHBARERFREHE -



31.

PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES - continued

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company
which, in the opinion of the directors, principally affected the
results of the year or constituted a substantial portion of the
net assets of the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries
would, in the opinion of the directors, result in particulars of
excessive length.

None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities subsisting
at 30 June 2015 and 30 June 2014 or at any time during
the year.

At the end of the reporting period, the Company has other
subsidiaries that are not material to the Group. The majority
of these subsidiaries operate in Hong Kong. The principal
activities of these subsidiaries are summaries as follows:

31.

FEMRBEAT -~
FRFIAATMBAT EERAHAEE
LEEEAYERENAEMEEFETAL
EYMBAT - EERA - MEHLGHIBAT
ZEBE—HEIL - BIESERBRTTE -

EHBATIR " E—AE~<A=+AR—-%=
—PU4E 7S B =+ B s F R (I R | E
BEH o

RIS BTN - AR BITER E A A K B i
SUAERZMBAR - KEBDZEHBAF
RERBLE - ZEMBAR 2 E2EBHt
T

Principal activities Principal place of business Number of subsidiaries
FEEWR FEER I MEARRE
2015 2014
—E-IF —ZT—mE
HK$’000 HK$'000
TERT FET
Investment holding Macau/United Kingdom 2 1
REER P,/ 5
Inactive Hong Kong/Macau/United Kingdom 8 10
A E BB/ R EE

10 1A
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31. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES - continued 31. XEMBAT -#
Details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries that BEERIEBRBRERERZHS
have material non-controlling interests ENB AR ZHE
The table below provides details of a non-wholly owned TRIBHIEA EA IR RS 2 NEEIE
subsidiary of the Group that has material non-controlling 2EMBARZHFE :
interests:

Proportion of ownership
Place of incorporation  interests and voting rights Profit (loss) allocated to
and principal place held by non-controlling non-controlling interests Accumulated non-controlling
Name of subsidiary of business interests as at 30 June for the year ended 30 June interests as at 30 June
RAA=1H BZEAA=THLEE
SMALEER  FERRREREES PEFFERRR RAA=+A

WEAREH TEERHE FEREZRRERLA B 2B (E8E) 2R FERRRES
2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014

“E-Hf T ZE-1f —T-mF ZE-Ef ZTMF

HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000

FHER THL TR THT

Shenzhen Helper PRC 38.46% 38.46% 1,480 2,294 20,699 19,227
B HE
Individually immaterial subsidiaries 261 318 5,266 4,969

with non-controlling interests

BAFERRRES 2@

FEAWELR
1,14 2,612 25,965 24,19
Summarised financial information in respect of the Group’s A E AR RS 2 ANEEEB AR Z
subsidiary that has material non-controlling interests is set B ERHEEE LT » MBI EEREES
out below. The summarised financial information below MR EE AR FAIZ S5 ©

represents amounts before elimination of intragroup
transactions.




31. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES - continued 31. XEMBAF-#

Shenzhen Helper YT 1E A
2015 2014
—E-FRF —T—mF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHERT FHET
Non-current assets FERBEE 7,751 8,184
Current assets RENEE 51,075 69,071
Current liabilities REBEE (5,007) (27,264)
Equity s 53,819 49,991
2015 2014
—E-fHF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHERT FHET
Revenue N 124,690 108,252
Other income and expenses Hib g A BRI (120,763) (102,863)
Profit for the year AEE A 3,847 5,964
Other comprehensive income (expense) AEEHM2EME ()
for the year 80 (575)
Net cash from operating activities REEBMB RS FE 2,621 5,435
Net cash used in investing activities BAZOECREFE (2,080) (1,238)
Net cash used in financing activities BMEETBECIR ST - (6,829)
Net increase (decrease) in cash and RekReEEgmend ) FE
cash equivalents 541 (2,632)
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32. FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF THE 32. KRRz BEER
COMPANY

2015 2014

—E-fE —T—F

HK$’000 HK$'000

FHET FAT

Interests in subsidiaries iGN e £ 1,883,877 1,769,260

Other receivables FEUE b BRFR 363 453

Bank balances and cash RITEHB RS 110,254 9,110

Total assets BEME 1,994,494 1,778,823

Other payables FEfTE A BR TR 1,993 1,882

Dividend payables FEfARE 3 3

Amount due to a subsidiary FERNHB AT Z B = 136

Total liabilities BEBE 1,996 2,021

Net assets EEEE 1,992,498 1,776,802
Capital and reserves P R

Share capital (%N 986,538 758,875

Reserves (Note) GG 1,005,960 1,017,927

Equity attributable to owners of the Company KRR AELER 1,992,498 1,776,802

Note: Movements of the Company’s reserves during the current fizE : AARRAEERBAEE ZH#BEZHNOT

and prior years are as follows:

Retained
Share Special Dividend profits
premium reserve reserve (loss) Total

R &
058 RIRE REREE (&5 #8) At
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’'000 HK$'000
FET TR THET TR BT

At 1 July 2013 RZFT—=F+tHA—H 799,577 195,874 7,516 44,336 1,047,303

Loss and total comprehensive A EEHE 2 E X

expense for the year k) - - - (6,727) (6,727
Dividends for the year TEERE

— interim —rh - - 15,133 (15,133) -
Dividends paid BRRE - - (15,377) - (15,377)

Issue of shares as scrip dividend & BARKF 8. 21T A% ) -

(7,272) - (7,272)

- - (7,516) (15,133) (22,649)

At 30 June 2014 RZE—MmERA=1H 799,577 195,874 - 22,476 1,017,927

Loss and total comprehensive ~ AFEEEIER 2 ES

expense for the year k| - - - (7,747) (7,747)
Issue of shares TR (4,220) - - - (4,220)
At 30 June 2015 R-ZB-RAFX~A=+AH 795,357 195,874 - 14,729 1,005,960




FINANCIAL SUMMARY
MBRE

RESULTS ES

Year ended 30 June
HENACTHLEE
2015 213 212 2011

-1 "T-PE “F2-=F “B-_f _T——F ' ‘ 2\ =y
HK$'000 HK§'000  HK$'000  HK$'000 HKG000  HKS'000  HKS$'000
T A T TEr TR BT BT  Thr TEr TR

“EEE

TURNOVER e 2504174 2720286 1953394 1429281 1341006 1289616 1299684 1613048 1426500 1346894

PROFIT FROM ORDINARY RRAEEES

ACTIVITIES BEFORE il

TAXATION
Continuing operations RETEMEEL

excluding other JREREEE

operating expenses 60468 273234 235793 184186 149907 166030 266368 473710 466036 389774
Oeroperaingexpenses B @1595) (6847 (15765 (04174 (5720  @5800 (196999 (34904 G578 (B104)
PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION BREER 12873 4,760 78137 80,012 84,187 80,230 69,369 138806 410205 331,670
TAXATION W (2.205) - - 167 1 008 (180 IR
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR RERRF 10,668 4,760 78,137 80,179 84,320 80,109 68307 136964 410254 33155
ATTRIBUTABLE T0: FEdh -
Qwners of the company NG 2PN 8,927 2,148 27 80,474 84,02 82,955 7068 143010 412018 332,700
Non-controling FERER

nerests B3 174 260 0 (2%) W MY RIE) 60 (78 (1149

10,668 4760 18,137 80,179 84,320 80,109 68307 136964 410254 331,566

DIVIDENDS & = 15133 2,531 30,006 25,593 20,82 18,791 o8 120,023 93,043
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY
M HE
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EEREE
At 30 June
RWAR=TH
2015 2014 2012
“F-nf PN -T--F -FCF T ‘ ' N
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 i HK$'000
TEL T T T FEL B BT BT TET
TOTAL ASSETS BEEE 3692025 3443636 3435694 3377650 3334519 3057917 2995040 2545463 2405056 1923147
TOTAL LIABILITIES EEOE 21,012 223,893 196,828 207,258 173,844 181,652 199,517 256,808 265,643 238,316
SHAREHOLDERS' FUNDS KEEs 3,464,953 3219743 3238866 3170392 3160675 2876265 2795523 2288655 2139413 1,684,831

EQUITY ATTRIBUTABLE TO ARAEEA
OWNERS OF THE COMPANY fElbiER 3438988 3195647 3217105 3149338 3156748 2872938 2789377 227919 2,124,524 1,668,550

NON-CONTROLLING R
INTERESTS N 25,965 2419 21,761 21,054 3921 3320 6,146 9,500 14,880 16,261

3464953 3219743 3238866 3170392 3160675 2876265 279523 2208605 2139413 1,684,831
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KANTONE’S GLOBAL FOOTPRINT

HillZ IRER AR

OPERATIONS CENTRES

ASIA-PACIFIC

17°, Andar K

Nos.244-246, Rua De Pequim
Macau

EUROPE

Multitone House
Kempshott, Basingstoke
Hampshire

UK

MAJOR REGIONAL OFFICES
ASIA-PACIFIC

China

St. John’s Building
Central

Hong Kong

Kantone Centre
Chai Wan
Hong Kong

Tian’an Cyber Park
Futian District
Shenzhen

Golden Gate Plaza
Pudong New Area
Shanghai

Ya Yun Cun
Chao Yang District
Beijing

Malaysia
Batu Berendam Free Trade Zone
Malacca

EUROPE

Germany
RoBstraBe 11
Dusseldorf

UK

Hansa Road
King’s Lynn
Norfolk

THE AMERICAS

Brazil
Av. Fagundes Filho
Séo Paulo SP

MANUFACTURING FACILITIES

ASIA-PACIFIC
Malacca
Malaysia

EUROPE
King’s Lynn
Norfolk

UK

OTHER REGIONAL OFFICES
ASIA-PACIFIC

China
Chengdu
Guangzhou

EUROPE

Austria
Wien

Germany
Berlin
Frankfurt
Hagen
Hannover
Leipzig
Munchen
Stuttgart

Hungary
Budapest

Scotland
Lothian

THE AMERICAS

Brazil
Rio de Janeiro

United States
Washington
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